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Dated: July 7, 2023 

To 
Listing Operations, 
BSE Limited,  
P J Towers, Dalal Street,  
Mumbai - 400001. 
 
Dear Sir/Madam, 
 
Sub: Intimation about the 7th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 
July 13, 2023 as per Regulation 50(2) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations 2015. 
 
Pursuant to Regulation 50(2) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015, we wish to inform you that 
the 7th Annual General Meeting of the Company is proposed to be held on Thursday, July 
13, 2023 at Shorter Notice. 
 
We are herewith submitting the 7th Annual report for the financial year ended March 31, 
2023, sent to the shareholders on July 7, 2023, for your kind records. 
 
For Jana Holdings Limited                               
 
 
 
Vidya Sridharan 
Company Secretary and  
Compliance Officer (Mem. No. 44354) 
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NOTICE OF 7TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

Notice is hereby given that the Seventh Annual General Meeting of Jana Holdings Limited will be held 
on Thursday, July 13, 2023 at 11.00 AM IST to 11.15 AM IST at Shorter Notice through video 
conferencing (“VC”) at the registered office of the Company,  2nd Floor, No. 80, 5th Cross, 4th Main, 
Maruthi Extension, Bangalore – 560021 (Deemed Venue) at shorter notice, to transact the following 
businesses: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS  

1. To consider and adopt the standalone and consolidated financial statements of the Company for 
the financial year ended 31st March 2023, together with the Board’s Report and Auditors’ Reports 
thereon. 

2. Appointment of Mr. Rajamani Muthuchamy (DIN: 08080999) who retires by rotation in terms of 
section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and, being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 
 

SPECIAL BUSINESS 
 
3. Appointment of Mr. Sakalespur Visweswaraiya Ranganath as an Independent Director of 

the Company  
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution with or without modification as 
an Ordinary Resolution:  
 
RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Act, and the Rules framed thereunder read with Schedule IV to the Act 
(including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof), Mr. Sakalespur Visweswaraiya 
Ranganath (DIN: 00323799) who was appointed by the Board of Directors as the Independent 
Director of the Company with effect from 19th April 2023  for a period of five years, who meets 
the criteria for independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act and is eligible for 
appointment be and is hereby appointed an Independent Director of the Company and shall not 
be liable to retire by rotation.  
 

4. Re-appointment of Mr. Rajamani Muthuchamy, MD and CEO for a period of 3 years and 
approval of remuneration. 
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution with or without modification as a 
Special Resolution: 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT subject to the Articles of Association of the Company and in 
accordance with the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 198, 203 read with Schedule V and other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”), read with the Companies 
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors), Rules, 2014 [including any statutory 
modifications or re-enactments thereof for the time being in force], and in accordance with 
the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approval by the 
Board of Directors, the consent of the Members be and is hereby accorded for                                                
re-appointment of Mr. Rajamani Muthuchamy (DIN: 08080999), as MD and CEO of the 

https://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do
https://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do
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Company for a further period of 3 years commencing from 1st October 2023 to 31st 
September 2026 and he shall be liable to retire by rotation as per the Companies Act, 2013.  

 
RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the recommendation of NRC and approval of the Board of 
Directors and after taking into account past performance of Mr. Rajamani Muthuchamy, 
consent of the members be and is hereby accorded for grant of an annual increment @25% 
w.e.f. 1st April 2023 to Rajamani Muthuchamy, MD and CEO, on his existing CTC of 
Rs.86,00,000 per annum that will translate to a CTC of Rs.1,07,50,000 per annum. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, notwithstanding anything contained above, pursuant to the 
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approval of the  
Board, after the appraisal of Mr. Rajamani Muthuchamy, MD and CEO past performance and 
contribution to the Company, approval of the members be and is hereby accorded for 
granting a one-time performance incentive of 27.5% on his existing CTC of Rs.86,00,000 that 
will work out to Rs.23,65,000 (Rupees twenty-three lakhs and sixty-five thousand only). 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations) and 
subject to the terms of Part II of Schedule V, of the Companies Act, 2013, other applicable 
provisions, if any, and rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force), pursuant to recommendation of the NRC and 
approval of the Board, approval of the members be and is hereby accorded for revision of  
remuneration to Mr. Rajamani Muthuchamy as MD and CEO of the Company for a further 
period of 3 years commencing from 1st October 2023 to 30th September 2026, by way of 
salary, perquisites and allowances, performance incentive, etc. in excess of the limits 
mentioned under the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, as detailed herein 
below: 

 

i. Annual Salary: 
  

Particulars  Existing (Amount 
in Rs. p.a.)  

Revised (Amount in 
Rs.  p.a.) 

Fixed Compensation      
Basic  34,39,800   42,99,750 
HRA   17,19,900   21,49,875 
Special Allowance 
includes NPS  

19,62,106   24,52,632 

Misc. Allowance  14,78,194   18,47,742 
Employer PF  Nil    
Gross Salary(A)  86,00,000   1,07,50,000 
Perquisites  Nil   Nil 
Driver Salary  Nil   Nil 
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Total Perquisites (B)  Nil   Nil 
Total (A) + (B)  86,00,000   1,07,50,000 
Variable Pay  Nil  Nil 

GRAND TOTAL  86,00,000   1,07,50,000 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT notwithstanding anything mentioned above, Mr. Rajamani 
Muthuchamy, MD and CEO is entitled to reimburse all expenses incurred by him on behalf of 
the Company including travelling and conveyance expenses, and any other expenses spent 
legitimately for the benefit of the Company. 
 

5. Alteration of Articles of Association of the Company   
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution with or without modification as 
Special Resolution: 
 
RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 14 and other applicable provisions, 
if any of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made thereunder (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), pursuant to the approval 
of the Board of Directors, subject to permissions and sanctions from the appropriate 
authority, if any, the consent of shareholders be and hereby accorded for alteration of 
Articles of Association of the Company for inserting the following clause after clause 98(1):   

   
 “The Board of Directors shall appoint such person nominated by the debenture trustee in 
terms of clause(e) of sub-regulation(1) of regulation 15 of the Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (Debenture Trustees) Regulations, 1993 in the event of following: 

I. Two consecutive defaults in payment of interest to the Debenture holders   
II. Default in creation of security for debentures    

III. Default in redemption of debentures”   
 
By Order of the Board of Directors 
of Jana Holdings Limited 
 

Vidya Sridharan 
Company Secretary (Mem. No. A44354) 
 
Notes: 
1. Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has permitted convening the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) 

through Video Conferencing (“VC”) or Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”), without the physical 
presence of the members at a common venue. In accordance with the MCA Circulars, provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), the AGM of the Company is being held through VC. The meeting 
shall be held through Microsoft teams and link for joining the meeting will be shared separately. 

2. For any technical assistance before or during the meeting, the following person may be contacted:- 
Name:- Vidya Sridharan 
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Phone: 9590848264. 
3. Generally, a member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to 

attend and vote on a poll instead of himself and the proxy need not be a member of the Company. 
Since this AGM is being held through VC pursuant to the MCA Circulars, physical attendance of 
members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the 
members will not be available for the AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not 
annexed hereto. 

4. Since the AGM will be held through VC, the route map of the venue of the Meeting is not annexed 
hereto.  

5. In terms of the provisions of Section 152 of the Act, Mr. Rajamani Muthuchamy retires by rotation 
at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board 
of Directors of the Company recommended his appointment. Mr. Rajamani Muthuchamy is 
interested in the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 2 of the Notice with regard to his 
appointment. None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel is concerned or interested in this 
resolution except the appointee. 

6. Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report for 2022-23 is being sent only through electronic 
mode to those Members whose email addresses are registered with the Company/Depositories. 
Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report for 2022-23 will also be available on the 
Company’s website https://janaholdings.co.in/. 

7. The Company has been maintaining the statutory registers at its registered office,  2nd Floor,   No. 
80, 5th Cross, 4th Main, Maruthi Extension, Bangalore - 560021. In accordance with the MCA 
Circulars, the said registers will be made accessible for inspection through electronic mode and shall 
remain open and be accessible to any member during the continuance of the meeting. 
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To 

 

Board of Directors: 

Mr. Ramesh Ramanathan  - Non-Executive Chairman and Director 
Mr. Rajamani Muthuchamy  - MD and CEO 

Mrs. Saraswathy Athmanathan - Independent Director 

Mr. Abraham Chacko   - Independent Director 

Mr. S.V. Ranganath   - Independent Director 

Statutory Auditors 
Murali & Venkat, Chartered Accountants 

 

Secretarial Auditors 

Nagendra D. Rao, Practicing Company Secretary 

Registered Office 

Regd. off: 2nd Floor, No. 80, 5th Cross,  

4th Main, Maruthi Extension,  

Bangalore-560021 

Website: https://janaholdings.co.in/ 

CIN: U74900KA2016PLC086838 

Tel No. 98453 65595 

 

Bankers 

HDFC Bank Limited, Jana Small Finance Bank Limited. 

Key Managerial Personnel 

Mr. Rajamani  Muthuchamy, MD and CEO 

Mr. Gopalakrishnan Seshadri, Chief Financial Officer 

Mrs. Vidya Sridharan, Company Secretary 

Registrar and Share transfer agent 

KFin Technologies Pvt. Ltd.  

No.59, Skanda | Puttanna Road | Basavanagudi | Bengaluru 560 004 

Phone: 080 26603410 / 67453236 

Email: kulashekara.sharma@kfintech.com;  

web: https://www.kfintech.com 

Debenture Trustees 

Catalyst Trusteeship Limited. 

Address: Office No. 604, 6th floor, Windsor, C.S.T. Road, Kalina, Santacruz (East),  

Mumbai 400098 

Phone : +91 022 49220555 

Website: https://www.catalysttrustee.com/ 



 
 

The Members of Jana Holdings Limited, 

Your Directors are pleased to present the 7th Annual Report on the business and state of affairs 

of the Company together with the audited Standalone and Consolidated financial statements of 

the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2023. 

1. Financial Highlights based on the Standalone and Consolidated financials of the 

Company. 

     Rupees in Thousands  

 Standalone 
Particulars Year ended 

31.3.2023 
Year ended 
31.3.2022 

Revenue from Operations 340.16 450.89 
Other Income 8,500.00 - 
Total Revenue 8,840.16 450.89 
Total Expenditure 33,33,931.46 24,33,773.69 
Profit/(Loss) before Taxation (33,25,091.30) (24,33,322.80) 
Tax expenses - - 
Profit/(Loss) after Taxation (33,25,091.30) (24,33,322.80) 
Surplus/(deficit) carried to the 
Balance Sheet 

(33,25,091.30) (24,33,322.80) 

 

 Rupees in Thousands 

 Consolidated 
Particulars Year ended 

31.3.2023 
Year ended 
31.3.2022 

Revenue from Operations 340.16 450.89 
Other Income 8,500.00 - 
Total Revenue 8,840.16 450.89 
Total Expenditure 33,33,931.46 24,33,773.69 
Profit/(Loss) before tax and share of 
loss of Associate 

(33,25,091.30) (24,33,322.80) 

Tax expenses - - 
Share of Profit/(loss) of the 
associate accounted for using equity 
method 

(70,319.96) (9,01,618.64) 

Profit/(Loss) after Taxation (33,95,411.26) (33,34,941.45) 
Surplus/(deficit) carried to the 
Balance Sheet 

(33,95,411.26) (33,34,941.45) 

 

2. State of Company affairs  

The Company is a Non-Operating Financial Holding Company (NOFHC) which holds the 

investment in Jana Small Finance Bank Limited, Associate Company. The Company does not 

have any other operations except holding the Investments in its Associate Company. The 

Company is a registered with the RBI as NBFC-ND-SI. 

During the year under review, the total expenditure was Rs. 33,339.31 lakhs as against                                        

Rs. 24,337.73 for the financial year ended 31st March 2022. The finance cost increased from 



 
 

Rs. 27,238.11 lakhs (FY 2021-22) to Rs 32,835.17 lakhs (FY 2022-23), which was mainly due 

to the interest accruals for the non-convertible debentures issued by the Company.  

3. Dividend  

During the year under review, your Directors did not declare any dividends as the Company 

has suffered losses.  

4. Amount proposed to be carried to reserves  

No amount was carried to reserves during the year under review in view of losses as stated 

above.   

  

5. Share Capital  

The Authorised share capital of the Company as on 31st March 2023 is Rs. 50,00,00,000/- 

(Rupees fifty crores only) consisting of 3,50,00,000 equity shares having face value of Rs.10 

each amounting to Rs. 35,00,00,000/- and 1,50,00,000 preference shares of face value of                

Rs. 10 each amounting to Rs. 15,00,00,000/-.  

 

During the year under review the Company allotted 5,04,128 equity shares on rights issue 

basis on 30th June 2022 to Jana Capital Limited, Holding Company and 2,52,064 equity 

shares on rights issue basis on 29th July 2022. 

 

The Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the Company as on 31st March 2023 

stood at Rs. 3,13,71,360/- divided into 31,37,136 equity shares of Rs. 10 each.  

 

6. Debentures 

During the year under review, the Company issued following Debentures: 

 

Sl. 
No 

Series  No. of Debentures Face Value 
(Rs.) 

Amount (In 
Rupees) 

Allotment date 

1.  P  280 10,00,0000 28 Crores 31-May-2022 
 

7. Directors & Key Managerial Personnel  

The composition of the Board is in compliant with the applicable provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013, (“Act”) and the rules framed thereunder, guideline(s) issued by the 

Reserve Bank of India and other applicable laws. 
 

During the period under review following are the changes in the composition of the Board of 

Directors of the Company.   

• Re-appointed Mr. Abraham Chacko as an Independent Director of the Company for 

the second term of five consecutive years with effect from 8th March 2023. 

• Re-appointed Mrs. Saraswathy Athmanathan as an Independent Director of the 

Company for the second term of five consecutive years with effect from 8th March 

2023. 

• The Board of Directors re-appointed Mr. Ramesh Ramanathan as a Non-Executive 

Chairman of the Company. 

 

Post end of the financial year Mr. Sakalespur Visweswaraiya Ranganath was appointed as an 

Independent Director of the Company for the period of five consecutive years with effect 

from 19th April 2023 and same is placed for approval for the Members at the ensuing Annual 

General Meeting.  



 
 

 

The term of Mr. Rajamani Muthuchamy as a Managing Director and CEO expires on 1st 

October 2023 and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee recommended and the 

Board of Directors approved his re-appointment for 3 years and the same is placed for 

approval for the Members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.  

  

8. Policy on Appointment of Directors and Senior Management Personnel  

In terms of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules framed thereunder and 

the RBI Master Directions, the Board has adopted, ‘Policy on “Fit & Proper” Criteria for 

appointment of Directors. The said policy has been updated on the website 

(http://janaholdings.co.in) of the Company. 

 

9. Board of Directors 

The Composition of the Board of Directors as on 31st March 2023 are as follows:  

Name of the Director Category 
Mr. Ramesh Ramanathan Non-Executive Chairman 
Mr. Rajamani Muthuchamy MD and CEO 
Mr. Abraham Chacko Independent Director 
Mrs. Saraswathy Athmanathan Independent Director 
Mr. S. V Ranganath Independent Director 

 

 

10. Declarations from the Directors  

Based on the declarations and confirmations received in terms of the applicable provisions 

of the Act, circulars, notifications and directions issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the 

Companies Act, 2013 none of the Directors of the Company are disqualified from being 

appointed as Directors of the Company. The Company has received necessary declarations 

from the Independent Directors, affirming compliance with the criteria of independence 

stipulated under Section 149(6) of the Act. 

 

11. A statement regarding Independent Directors 

All the Independent Directors have fulfilled their eligibility criteria for the appointment as 

an Independent Directors  

 

In the opinion of the Board the Independent Directors possess the integrity, expertise and  

experience. 

 

12. Declaration of compliance with the Code of Conduct for the Directors and Members of 

Senior Management Personnel 

The Company has received the declaration in compliance with the Code of Conduct by the 

Directors and the Senior Management Personnel for the financial year 2022-23. 

 

13. Director(s) retiring by rotation  

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read along with the applicable 

Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, Mr. Rajamani 

Muthuchamy, Managing Director and CEO, retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General 

Meeting and, being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 

 

 

 



 
 

14. Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 

There is no change in the KMPs during the year under review. Mr. Rajamani Muthuchamy, 

MD and CEO, Mr. Gopalakrishnan. S, CFO and Mrs. Vidya Sridharan, Company Secretary 

continue to be the KMPs of the Company in terms of Section 203 of the Act.  

 

15. Subsidiaries / Joint Venture / Associate Companies  

Jana Small Finance Bank Limited continues to be the Associate Company in accordance with 

the provisions of the Act. Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of 

Associate Company in Form AOC-1 is attached as Annexure-1. 

 

Brief contribution and performance of Jana Small Finance Bank Limited, Associate Company 

is as follows: 

The total income increased from Rs. 3050.29 crores (FY 2021-22) to Rs3699.87 crores (FY 

2022-23). The total expenditure increased from Rs. 3044.89 Crores (FY-2021-22) to Rs. 

3443.90Crores (FY 2022-23). The Net (Loss) decreased to Rs. (3827.05) crores (FY 2022-

23) from Rs. (4077.75) crores (FY 2021-22)   

 

16. Transfer of Unclaimed Dividend etc to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF)  

Since there was no amount lying with respect to the unpaid/ unclaimed Dividend, the 

provisions of Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply.  

 

17. Compliance Monitoring System. 

In terms of provisions of Section 134(5)(f) of the Act, the Company has right resources for 

effectively monitoring to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and 

that such systems are adequate and operating effectively. 

 

18. Amalgamation  

The Board in its meeting held on October 21, 2019, and November 12, 2019, approved Fast-

track method for merging Jana Holdings Limited (JHL), being the wholly owned Non-

Operating Financial Holding Company (NOFHC), with its Holding as well as Core Investment 

Company, Jana Capital Limited after receiving the in-principle approval from the RBI on 

10th August 2020. As per the existing guidelines, the requirement of having a NOFHC has 

been dispensed with by the RBI for setting up Small Finance Banks and Universal Banks. 

 

Further, such a merger of the wholly owned subsidiary with the Holding Company will 

simplify the compliances to be reported to various Regulatory Authorities, besides resulting 

in lower operating costs. Subsequent to the receipt of the in-principle approval from the RBI, 

the Board of Directors of the transferor and the Transferee Companies met on 24th August 

2020, approved the Scheme of Amalgamation of Jana Holdings Limited (Wholly Owned 

subsidiary) with Jana Capital Limited (Holding Company). 

 

The transferee Company submitted the necessary application to the Regional Director, 

South-East Region, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Hyderabad, on 6th November 2020 for 

obtaining approval of Amalgamation under Section 233 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Regional Director, Ministry of Company Affairs, Hyderabad vide letter dated 26th March 

2021 rejected the application filed on 6th November 2020 for the merger of JHL with JCL, 

since JHL had obtained consent from the creditors to the extent of 82.78% in value as 

against the minimum threshold of consent from 90% of the creditors in value as required 

under Section 233 of the Companies Act, 2013 and, as such, the provisions of Section 

233(1)(d) could not be fully complied with. The Board of Directors considered the aforesaid 



 
 

rejection order and resolved to file the fresh merger application subject to the approval of 

the Scheme by the Board of Directors, Shareholders, Creditors, and such other authorities as 

may be required. The Board of Directors have once again approved the scheme of 

amalgamation and resolved to apply afresh for the merger of the company with Jana Capital 

Limited, the Holding Company. In line with the decision of the Board of Directors, the 

company has taken steps to obtain affidavits in the prescribed Formats from the creditors 

and shareholders for the merger.  

 

Upon the receipt of the same, the Company will file the application with NCLT under section 

230-232 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the merger with a prayer to dispense with holding 

of meeting with the creditors and shareholders and pursue the subsequent steps involved 

for the amalgamation or, alternatively, file an application with RD under section 233 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 by following the fast-track route for the merger as may be applicable. 

 

19. Credit Rating: 

During the year under review the following ratings are obtained from ICRA and India 

Ratings for the ongoing debt programme of the Company: -  

• PP-MLD [ICRA]B (Negative) by ICRA 

• IND B – by India Rating.    

 

20. Particulars of Deposits:  

The Company has been granted Certificate of Registration by the RBI to carry on the 

business of non-banking financial Institution without accepting public deposits. Accordingly, 

the provisions of Section 73 and Section 74 of the Act read with Rule 8(5)(v) & (vi) of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, are not applicable to the Company. During the year 

under review, the Company had neither accepted nor held any deposits from the public and 

shall not accept any deposits from the public without obtaining prior approval from the 

Reserve Bank of India. 

 

21. Extracts of the Annual Return:  

In accordance with the notification by MCA dated 28th August 2020, the Company is not 

required to attach the extract of the Annual return with the Board’s report in form MGT-9, if 

the web address of such annual return has been disclosed in the Board’s report in 

accordance with Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the Company 

having the website has uploaded its Annual Return and the same can be accessed from the 

website (http://janaholdings.co.in) of the Company. 

 

22. Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties: 

During the period under review, the Company entered into fresh contract with a related 

party details of which are disclosed in Form AOC-2 and the details of 

contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in 

sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 are given in Annexure 2 of this 

Report.  

 

23. Particulars of Loans, Guarantees and Investments:  

During the year under review, the following investments were made: 

 

Sl. 
No. 

Name of Company Amount invested 
in Thousands  

Date of 
Investment 

Particulars 

1.  Jana Small Finance  Rs. 249,999.86/- May 31, 2022 At the rate of 



 
 

Bank Limited Rs._968.56 per 
equity share  

2.  Jana Small Finance 
Bank Limited 

Rs. 499,999.85/- June 30, 2022 At the rate of Rs. 
580.55per 
equity share  

3.  Jana Small Finance 
Bank Limited 

Rs. 249,999.92/- July 29, 2022 At the rate of Rs. 
580.55per 
equity share 

 

The provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act pertaining to granting of loans to any 

persons or body corporate and giving of guarantees or providing security in connection with 

the loan to any other body corporate or persons are not applicable to the Company, since the 

Company is a Non-Banking Financial Company, registered with Reserve Bank of India. 

 

24. Internal Financial Control Systems: 

Pursuant to Section 134(5)(e) your Company has a proper and adequate system of Internal 
Financial Control, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its operations. To 

maintain its objectivity and independence, the Company has appointed Ramesh Ashwin & 

Karanth, Chartered Accountants as Internal Auditor who conducted the Internal Audit of the 

Company for the Financial Year 2022-23 on a voluntary basis as the said provision is not 

applicable to the Company as per rule 2A of Companies (Specification of definitions details) 

Rules, 2014 with effect from 1st April 2021. The Internal Auditor appointed as aforesaid 

monitors and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of internal financial control system in the 

Company, its compliance with operating systems, accounting procedures and policies of the 

Company. Based on the internal audit report, process owners undertake corrective action in 

their respective areas and thereby strengthen the controls. Significant audit observations 

and corrective actions, if any, are presented to the Audit Committee of the Board. During the 

year under review, such controls were tested by the Internal Auditors of the Company and 

no material weaknesses in the design or operations were observed.  

 

25. Conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo:  

A. Conservation of Energy:  

Your Company, with a view to conserving energy wherever possible and practicable, has 

implemented suitable devices. As far as possible, natural light is used during the daytime. 

CFL/ LED lamps/ monitors are used to save power consumption. Further, awareness is also 

created among the employees on the need to conserve the energy in their workplace. There 

was no capital investment in this regard. 

 

B. Technology Absorption:  

Your Company be Non-Operating Financial Holding Company does not have any operation 

except for holding investment in Jana Small Finance Bank (JSFB). As such the Company have 

updated technology to work effectively as far as the extent and scope for which the Company 

is concerned.  

 

C. Research & Development Activities (R & D):  

Since the Company does not have operations on its own no research and development 

activities are carried out. 

 

D. Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo: 

There were no foreign exchange earnings and outgo during the year under review. 

 



 
 

26. Risk Management:  

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise debt securities and sundry payables. 

The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to invest in its operating entity. The 

Company’s principal financial assets include investment in associate company, cash and cash 

equivalents, balances in banks other than cash and cash equivalents. 

 

The Risk Management Committee oversees various risks affecting the Company. The 

Company’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and 

that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s 

policies and risk objectives. The Risk Management Committee and the Board of Directors 

reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks. The Company has formulated a 

policy for Risk management. 

 

27. Nomination and Remuneration policy. 

 

Disclosure of remuneration & particulars of employees:  

 

In terms of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, your Board have adopted a ‘Nomination 

and Remuneration Policy’ inter-alia setting out the criteria for deciding remuneration of 

Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Key Management Personnel. The said 

Policy is available on the website (http://janaholdings.co.in) of the Company. 

 

In terms of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014, the disclosures with 

respect to the remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Employees of the 

Company are not applicable to the Company as the Company is not covered under the 

definition of listed Company w.e.f. 1st April 2021 pursuant to rule 2A of Companies 

(Specification of definitions details) Rules, 2014. 

 

The Board hereby confirm that the remuneration paid to the Directors is as per the 

Remuneration Policy of the Company. 

 

28. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)  

The CSR committee was formed as per the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 

2013. However, the said committee was dissolved by the Board on March 4, 2021 as per 

Section 135(9) of the Companies Amendment Act, 2020 notified on 28th September 2020 

effective from 22nd January 2021 which provides that, if the amount to be spent by a 

company under Section 135(5) for CSR activity, does not exceed fifty lakh rupees, then the 

Company is not required to constitute the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and 

the functions of such Committee provided under this section shall be discharged by the 

Board.  

 

The CSR policy formulated by the Company pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 

2013 has been placed on the website (https://janaholdings.co.in/) of the Company.  

 

During the year under review, the Company was not required to spend any amount towards 

CSR expenditure.  

 

 

 



 
 

29. Whistle Blower / Vigil Mechanism:  

The Company as part of the ‘vigil mechanism’ has in place a ‘Whistle Blower Policy’ to deal 

with instances of fraud and mismanagement, if any. The Whistle Blower Policy has been 

placed on the website (http://janaholdings.co.in) of the Company. Audit Committee 

oversees the vigil mechanism of the Company and provides adequate safeguard against 

victimization of employees. The Vigil mechanism provides direct access to the Chairperson 

of the Audit Committee in exceptional circumstances. During the year under review, there 

were no whistle blowers.  

30. Management Discussions and Analysis  

Management Discussion and Analysis detailing the industry developments, segment wise/ 

product wise performance and other matters is attached to this Report as Annexure 3 

 

31. Maintenance of cost records. 

The Company is not required to maintain cost records as specified by the Central 

Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, accordingly 

such accounts and records are not made and maintained. 

 

32. Compliance with Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition 

and Redressal) Act, 2013. 

The Board of Directors have adopted POSH policy. The Company is not required to 

constitute Internal Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at 

Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 since the number of 

employees are less than 10. 

 

33. Secretarial Standards:  

The Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards viz. SS-1 and SS-2 

during the year. 

 

34. Meetings of the Board of Directors and Committees.  

The Board is required to meet at periodical intervals and the gap between two Board 

meetings does not exceed 120 days as required under the Companies Act, 2013. During the 

financial year 2022-23, the Company held the following meetings of the Board of Directors 

as per Section 173 of Companies Act, 2013 as mentioned below: 

Sl. No. Date of Board meeting No. of Directors 
eligible to attend 
the meeting 

No. of Directors 
attended the 
meeting 

1.  May 30, 2022 4 3   
2.  June 29, 2022 4 4 
3.  July 28, 2022 4 4 
4.  August 6, 2022 4 4 
5.  November 14, 2022 4 3 
6.  February 7, 2023 4 4 

 

The Company has constituted mandatory committees as required  under the Companies Act, 

2013 viz., Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Committees as 

required under the Master Directions of the Reserve Bank of India such as Risk Management 

Committee, Asset and Liability Management Committee and IT strategy committee. The 

Company also constituted Stakeholders Relationship Committee at the Board meeting held 



 
 

on February 12, 2022, as required under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations 2015. 

The details of meeting of committees constituted under the Companies Act, 2013, the RBI 

and as per SEBI ((Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 are as 

below:   

Date of Audit committee No. of Members eligible to 
attend the meeting 

No. of Members attended 
the meeting 

May 30, 2022 3 2 
June 29, 2022 3 3 
August 6, 2022 3 3 
November 14, 2022 3 2 
February 7, 2023 3 3 

 

Date of Risk management 
Committee 

No. of Members eligible to 
attend the meeting 

No. of Members attended 
the meeting 

May 30, 2022 4 4 
August 6, 2022 4 4 
November 14, 2022 4 3 
February 7, 2023 4 3 

 

Date of Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee 

No. of Members eligible to 
attend the meeting 

No. of Members attended 
the meeting 

May 30, 2022 3 2 
June 29, 2022 3 3 
February 7, 2023 3 2 

 

Date of Asset and Liability 
Management Committee 

No. of Members eligible to 
attend the meeting 

No. of Members attended 
the meeting 

May 30, 2022 4 4 
August 6, 2022 4 4 
November 14, 2022 4 3 
February 7, 2023 4 4 

 

Date of IT strategy 
committee 

No. of Members eligible to 
attend the meeting 

No. of Members attended 
the meeting 

August 6, 2022 4 3 
 

Date of Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee 

No. of Members eligible to 
attend the meeting 

No. of Members attended 
the meeting 

May 30, 2022 3 2 
 

35. Meeting of Independent Directors:  

The Company held Independent Directors meeting on March 16, 2023. 

 

 

 



 
 

36. Statutory Auditors  

In accordance with the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules 

framed thereunder, Murali and Venkat, Chartered Accountants, Bangalore (Firm 

Registration number 002162S) were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company at the 

Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on October 21, 2021; on account of 

casual vacancy caused due to the resignation of earlier Auditors and the said appointment is 

valid upto the conclusion of the ensuing AGM. Pursuant to Section 139 of the Companies Act, 

2013 the Company is required to appoint Statutory auditors for a period of 5 years. As per 

the RBI circular dated April 27, 2021, the Company having asset size more than Rs. 1000 

crores, the Statutory Auditor can be appointed for a maximum period upto 3 years. 

Accordingly, the Audit Committee Meeting has recommended the re-appointment of Murali 

and Venkat, Chartered Accountants, as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office 

from the conclusion of the 6th Annual General Meeting until the 9th Annual General Meeting 

for the purpose of conducting the Statutory Audit for the financial year from 2022-23 to 

2024-25. Murali and Venkat, Chartered Accountants, had given their consent and confirmed 

their eligibility to act as the statutory auditors of the Company and the appointment of 

Statutory Auditors was approved by the Shareholders. 

 

During the year under review, the statutory auditors have not reported any incident of fraud 

to the Audit Committee or the Board. 

 

37. Qualification made by the Statutory Auditor’s in the Audit report of Standalone and 

Consolidated Financial Statements. 

I) Following are the qualifications/observations made by the statutory Auditors in the 

Statutory Audit report on Standalone financial statements for the Financial Year 2022-23: 

(i) The Company is a Non-Operating Financial Holding Company (‘NOFHC’) of Jana Small 

Finance Bank Limited (‘JSFB’ or ‘the Bank’, An Associate Company hereinafter called as “The 

Associate”). As per RBI guidelines, the Company shall maintain minimum Capital Adequacy 

Ratio (‘CAR’) at a consolidated level based on the prudential guidelines on Capital Adequacy 

and Market Discipline New Capital Adequacy Framework (NCAF) issued under Basel II 

framework and Guidelines on Implementation of Basel III Capital Regulations of India, when 

implemented. In Our Opinion, for the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company is not 

meeting with the regulatory minimum CAR on a consolidated basis. Capital adequacy 

computed on a consolidated basis as on 31 March 2023, is in negative data of 4.17% (minus 

4.17%), which is below the regulatory minimum of 15%. The consequential impact of such 

non-compliances on the Standalone Financial Statements is presently unascertainable. 

(Refer  Note 34  to the Audited Standalone Financial Statements ) 

 

Our reply: The above-mentioned qualification appeared in the last year's Auditors’ report 

as well. This issue can be addressed if the Company amalgamates with Jana Capital Limited 

(JCL) Core Investment Company as the requirement of CAR at 15% is not a requirement for 

Core Investment Company and hence the Company approached the RBI to seek their 

consent for the amalgamation of the Company with JCL and obtained the approval on 10th 

August 2020, the Board of Directors of the transferor and the Transferee Company met on 

24th August 2020, approved the Scheme of Amalgamation of the Company (Wholly Owned 

subsidiary) with Jana Capital Limited (Holding Company). The Company held the Extra-

Ordinary General Meeting of the Shareholders on 30th October 2020 for the approval of the 

Scheme. Jana Capital Limited submitted the necessary application with the Regional 



 
 

Director, South-east Region, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Hyderabad on 6th November 2020 

for obtaining approval of Amalgamation under Section 233 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

However, said application was rejected by the Regional Director on March 26th, 2021, since 

the Company could obtain the creditors' consent to the extent of 82.78% as against 90% 

required under section 233 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Board of Directors have once 

again approved the scheme of amalgamation and resolved to apply afresh for the merger of 

the company with Jana Capital Limited, the Holding Company. In line with the decision of the 

Board of Directors, the company has taken steps to obtain affidavits in the prescribed 

Formats from the creditors and shareholders for the merger.  

 

Upon the receipt of the same, the Company will file the application with NCLT under section 

230-232 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the merger with a prayer to dispense with holding 

of meeting with the creditors and shareholders and pursue the subsequent steps involved 

for the amalgamation or, alternatively, file an application with RD under section 233 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 by following the fast-track route for the merger as may be applicable. 

(ii)  The terms and conditions of the Certificate of Registration issued to the Company by the 

RBI vide letter no. N-02.00275 dated 27 January 2017, requires complying with prescribed 

Net Owned Fund requirement in accordance with Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India 

Act, 1934 and RBI’s Master Direction DNBR.  PD.008/03.10.119/2016-17 dated 1st 

September 2016. In Our Opinion, The Net Owned Funds of the Company as on 31 March 

2023, is in a Deficit of Rs.225,469.55 Lakhs, which is below the regulatory minimum of Rs. 

200 Lakhs. The consequential impact of such non-compliance on the Standalone Financial 

Statements is presently unascertainable. (Refer Note 35  to the Audited Standalone Financial 

Statements) 

Our reply: JHL is a NOFHC established as per the requirement of the RBI, as an intermediate 

entity between the CIC and Associate Company, with the sole purpose of raising money and 

investing in Jana Small Finance Bank Ltd (JSFB), Associate Company. The entire investment 

is in the form of equity in JSFB. Hence, the Net owned funds calculated under section 45-1A 

of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934 which negates excess of investment over 10% of Net 

worth will result in lower or negative Net owned funds. The proposed Amalgamation of the 

Company with JCL, Holding Company, will address this issue as well.  

(iii) As per RBI guidelines, the NOFHC may have a Leverage of up to 1.25 times, of  its  paid-

up Equity Share Capital and Free Reserves. For the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company 

had a Leverage Ratio Negative of 105.52 times which is above the regulatory threshold of 

1.25 times as stated on a Standalone basis. In our opinion the consequential impact of such 

non-compliances on the Standalone Financial Statements is presently unascertainable. 

(Refer Note 36  to the Audited Standalone Financial Statements)  

Our Reply: This issue will also get addressed after the amalgamation of JHL with JCL. The 

qualifications stated by the Auditors in the Audit report of Consolidated Financial 

Statements are the same as stated for standalone financial statements for which the replies 

have been made as mentioned above. 

I) Following are the qualifications/observations made by the statutory Auditors in the 

Statutory Audit report on Consolidated financial statements for the Financial Year 

2022-23: 

(i) The Company is a Non-Operating Financial Ho!ding Company ('NOFHC') of Jana Small 

Finance Bank Limited ('JSFB' or 'the Bank', An Associate Company herein after called as "The 



 
 

Associate"). As per RBI guidelines, the Company shall maintain minimum Capital Adequacy 

Ratio ('CAR') at a consolidated level based on the prudential guidelines on Capitai Adequacy 

and Market Discipline New Capital Adequacy Framework (NCAF) issued under Basel II 

framework and Guidelines on Implementation of Basel m CapitalRegulations of India, when 

implemented. In Our Opinion, for the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company is not 

meeting with the regulatory minimum CAR on a consolidated basis. Capital adequacy 

computed on Consolidated basis as on 31 March 2023, is in negative data of 4.17% (minus 

4.17%), which is below the regulatory minimum of 15%. The consequential impact of such 

non-compliances on the Consolidated Financial Statements is presently unascertainable. 

(Refer Note 33 to the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements) 

Our Reply: Same as reply given for similar observation mentioned in Standalone Financial 

Statements. 

(ii)The terms and conditions of the Certificate of registration issued to the Company by the 

RBI vide letter no. N-02.00275 dated 27 January 2017, requires to comply with prescribed 

Net Owned Fund requirement in accordance with Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India 

Act, 1934 and RBI's Master Direction DNBR. PD.008/03.10.119/2016-17 dated 1st 

September 2016. In Our Opinion, The Net Owned Funds of the Company as on 31 March 

2023, is in a Deficit of Rs.225,469.55 Lakhs, which is below the regulatory minimum of Rs. 

200 Lakhs. The consequential impact of such non-compliance on the Consolidated Financial 

Statement is presently unascertainable. (Refer note 34 to the audited Consolidated Financial 

Statements). 

Our Reply: Same as reply given for similar observation mentioned in Standalone Financial 

Statements. 

(iii)As per RBI guidelines, the NOFHC may have a Leverage of up to 1.25 times, of it's Paid up 

Equity Share Capital and Free Reserves. For the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company 

had a Leverage Ratio Negative of 1.11 times which is above the regulatory threshold of 1.25 

times as stated on a consolidated basis. In Our Opinion the consequential impact of such 

non-compliances on the Consolidated Financial Statements is presently unascertainable. 

(Refer Note 35 to the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Our Reply: Same as reply given for similar observation mentioned in Standalone Financial 

Statements. 

38. Details of Fraud 

Pursuant to Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 Board of Directors, to the best of 

their knowledge and ability, confirm that no offence of fraud has been committed in the 

Company or by its officers or employees. 

39. Internal Auditors  

In terms of provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable laws,                   

M/s Ramesh Ashwin & Karanth, Chartered Accountants, Firm Registration No. 010680S 

were appointed as the Internal Auditors of the Company for the FY 2022-23. The Internal 

Audit reports are reviewed by the Audit Committee. 

40. Secretarial Auditors  

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has 

appointed Nagendra. D. Rao, Practising Company Secretary, Bangalore to conduct the 



 
 

secretarial audit for the financial year ended March 31, 2023. The Report of the Secretarial 

Auditor is provided as Annexure 5 to this Report. The following are the qualifications made 

by the Secretarial Auditors in their report: 

a) The Company could not provide for adequate notice to the BSE as envisaged under 

Regulation 50 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 for holding Board meetings on January 

10, 2022, March 18, 2022, and March 24, 2022, relating to items of restructuring and 

fresh borrowing of Non-Convertible Debentures (NCD). 

Our Reply: The Company had obtained consent from the Board of Directors for 

conducting the meeting at shorter notice. The Company could not provide adequate time 

as stipulated in the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 due to the Business exigency for 

raising funds.  

 

b) The company has not maintained the minimum NOF. The company is required to 

maintain a minimum Net owned funds (‘NOF’) of Rs. 200 lakhs in order to continue as a 

NBFC. The Net Owned Funds of the Company as on 31 March 2023, is in a deficit of Rs. 

2,25,469.55 Lakhs, which is below the regulatory minimum requirement of Rs. 200 

Lakhs.  

Our reply: This observation is appearing in the Standalone Financial Statements of the 

Company. The reply is given in point 37 of this report. 

 

c) As per the information received, for the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company is not 

meeting with the regulatory minimum Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) on a consolidated 

basis. Capital adequacy computed on a consolidated basis as on 31 March 2023, is in 

negative data of 4.17% (minus 4.17 %), which is below the regulatory minimum 

requirement of 15%. 

Our reply: This observation is appearing in the Standalone Financial Statements of the 

Company. The reply is given in point 37 of this report. 

 

d) As per RBI guidelines, the NOFHC may have a Leverage of up to 1.25 times of its Paid-up 

Equity Share Capital and Free Reserves. For the year ended 31 March 2023, the 

Company had a Leverage Ratio of negative of 105.52 times which is above the regulatory 

threshold of 1.25 times of the Standalone Financial Statements of the company. 

Our reply: This observation is appearing in the Standalone Financial Statements of the 

Company. The reply is given in point 37 of this report. 

 

e) As per Regulation 15 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, Regulation 16 to Regulation 27 

have been made applicable to the company on a 'comply or explain' basis until March 31, 

2023. Accordingly, the Company needs to explain the reasons with regards to quorum at 

the Audit Committee meeting held on 30th May, 2022 in the quarterly compliance report 

on Corporate Governance, where only one Independent Director was present at the 

Audit Committee meeting held on 30th May, 2022. 

Our Reply: One of the Independent Director could informed the inability to attend the 

meeting due to health issue. Therefore, the meeting was not attended by 2 Independent 

Director as required by SEBI (LODR). The Company has explained the reason for the 

same in the revised filing of Corporate Governance report for the quarter ended June 

2022 and also explained the reason in the Corporate Governance report annexed to this 



 
 

report. It may be noted that this provision is on comply and explain basis upto March 

31st 2023 which has been extended upto March 31st 2024. 

 

f) The company has not filed the outcome of the Board meetings dated May 30, 2022, 

August 06, 2022, November 14, 2022, and February 07, 2023, with BSE limited within 30 

minutes of the closure of the Board meetings with BSE as required under Schedule III 

Part B of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 read with Regulation 51(2). 

Our reply: The Company conducts all the meetings through Video Conferencing as 

permitted under the Companies Act, 2023 for all the items for Board approval including 

the approval of the financial statements. The process of obtaining signatures are done 

via emails, generation of UDIN by the Auditors etc consumes time. Due to this the 

Company is unable to submit the financials results within 30 mins as prescribed under 

the SEBI (LODR). It may be noted that the Company is only a debt listed Company and 

not equity listed company, therefore, submission of financial results is not a price 

sensitive information. 

 

g) The Company for the quarter ended March 31, 2022, has intimated with delay the 

confirmation as required under Regulation 57(5) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. 

Further, the company should have also submitted confirmation for the quarter ended 

30th June 2022 as required under Regulation 57(5) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.  

Our reply: As per Regulation 57(5) of SEBI (LODR), the listed entity shall within seven 

working days from the end of the quarter provide (a) a certificate confirming the 

payment of interest/dividend/principal obligations for non-convertible securities which 

were due in that quarter (b) the details of all unpaid interest/dividend/principal 

obligations in relation to non-convertible securities at the end of the quarter. The 

Company did not have any NCD due for the month of March 2022 quarter and June 2022 

quarter, therefore submission of said information was not warranted. 

 

h)  The Company need to have Archival Policy. Further, in the quarterly compliance report 

on Corporate Governance, the company need to explain the reasons for not having the 

policy on Board Diversity, in terms of Regulation 15 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 

2015. 

Our reply: The Company has adopted Archival policy and Board Diversity policy at the 

Board meeting held on June 7, 2023.   

 

41. Change in nature of business. 

During the period under review, there was no change in the nature of business of the 

Company. 

42. Material changes after the closure of financial year. 

There have been no material changes and commitments, which affect the financial position 

of the company that have occurred between the end of the financial year to which the 

financial statements relate and the date of this Report. 

43. Material adverse orders, if any  

There are no significant and material orders passed by the Reserve Bank of India or the 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs or Courts or Tribunals or other Regulatory/ Statutory 



 
 

authorities which will have an impact on the going concern status of the Company and 

Company’s operations in future. 

 

44. One Time Settlement 

There was no instance of onetime settlement with any Bank or Financial Institution, and 

hence, no disclosure is required under rule 8(5)(xii) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 

2014. 

45. Pending proceedings under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 

There is no proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, initiated 

by or against the Company. 

46. Directors’ responsibility statement  

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations 

obtained by them, your Directors make the following statements in terms of Section 

134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013:  

(a) That in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year under review, the 

applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating 

to material departures, if any. 

(b) The directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and 

made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair 

view of the state of affairs of the company as at the end of the financial year and of the profit 

and loss of the company for that period. 

c) The directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act for safeguarding 

the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.  

(d) The directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis. 

(e) The directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company 

and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively and  

(f) The directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of 

all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

47. Corporate Governance Report 

The Company being High Value Debt Listed Company has prepared Corporate Governance 

Report for the financial year 2022-23. The same is attached herewith as Annexure – 4. 
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Annexure - 1 
FORM AOC_I 

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries / 
associate companies / joint ventures 

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

Part “A”: Subsidiaries: 

1. Sl. No.

2. Name of the Subsidiary

3. Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned,

if different from the holding company’s

reporting period

4. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the

last date of the relevant Financial year in the case

of foreign subsidiaries.

5. Share capital (Rs.)

6. Reserves & surplus

7. Total assets

8. Total Liabilities

9. Investments

10. Turnover

11. Profit before taxation

12. Provision for taxation

13. Profit after taxation

14. Proposed Dividend

15. % of shareholdings

Not applicable as the Company 
has no subsidiary. 

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations – NIL

2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year- NIL

For and on behalf of board of directors of 
Jana Holdings Limited  

Rajamani Muthuchamy 
MD & CEO  
(DIN:08080999) 
 Place: Bangalore 
 Date: June 7, 2023 

S.V.Ranganath
Independent Director
(DIN: 00323799)
Place: Bangalore
Date: June 7, 2023

Sd/- Sd/-



 
 

 
 

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures : 
Statement pursuant to section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to 

Associates and Joint Ventures: 
 

Name of Associates/Joint Ventures Jana Small Finance Bank Limited 
    
1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 

 
2.  Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures  held by the  
 company on the year end 
  
      Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture 

(in thousand) 
 
 Extent of Holding % 
 
3.  Description of how there is significant influence 
 

 
4.  Reason why the associate/joint venture  is not  
 consolidated  
 
5.  Net worth attributable to Shareholding as per 

latest audited Balance Sheet. 
 
6.  Profit / Loss for the year  

i.  Considered in Consolidation 
ii. Not Considered in Consolidation 

 
31st March 2023 
 
 
2,35,75,790 equity shares  
 
Rs. 2,233.33 crores (Net of 
Impairment)  
 
42.88 % 
 
Shareholding 
 
Not applicable 
  
 
Rs. (2,022.37) crores  
 
 

 
Rs. (7.03) crores  
Rs. (332.51) crores 

 
1.  Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations: NIL 
2.  Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year: 

NIL  
 

For and on behalf of board of directors of 
Jana Holdings Limited  

 
 

                 Sd/- 
 
Rajamani Muthuchamy 
MD & CEO 
(DIN: 08080999) 
Place: Bangalore 
Date: June 7, 2023 

 
 

           Sd/- 
 
S.V.Ranganath 
Independent Director 
(DIN: 00323799) 
 Place: Bangalore 
 Date: June 7, 2023 

 

  

 



 
 

Annexure - 2 

FORM NO. AOC -2 

[Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014] 

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with 

related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including 

certain arm’s length transaction under third proviso thereto: 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis:  

Sr. 

No. 

Particulars Details 

1.  Name (s) of the related party & nature of 

relationship 

 

 

 

 

 

NA 

2.  Nature of contracts /arrangements /transaction 

3.  Duration of the contracts /arrangements 

/transaction 

4.  Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements 

or transaction including the value, if any 

5.  Justification for entering into such contracts or 

arrangements or transactions’ 

6.  Date of approval by the Board 

7.  Amount paid as advances, if any 
 

Date on which the special resolution was passed 

in General meeting as required under first 

proviso to section 188 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:   
 

 Particulars Details 

1 Names(s) of the related party & nature 

of relationship 

Vidya Sridharan & her 

relative 

2 Nature of contracts /arrangements 
/transaction 

Renting of property 

3 Duration of the 
contracts/arrangements/transaction 

Ongoing. Started from 15th 
September 2021 and 
revised from 16th August 

2022. 

4 Salient terms of the contracts or 

arrangements or transaction including 
the value, if any 

Rs. 12,500 per month with a 

5% increase every 11 
months.  

5 Date of approval by the Board 6th August 2022 

6 Amount paid as advances, if any Nil 
 

 
 For and on behalf of board of directors of 

Jana Holdings Limited  
 
 
 

 
Sd/- 

 
      Rajamani Muthuchamy 
      MD & CEO  
      (DIN: 08080999) 

 
      Place: Bangalore 
      Date: June 7, 2023 

 
          Sd/- 
 
S.V Ranganath 
Independent Director 
(DIN:00323799) 

 
 Place: Bangalore 
 Date: June 7, 2023 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

Annexure 3 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

a) About the Economy 
In Calendar Year (CY) 2022, the world faced a new set of challenges, including geopolitical 
tensions in Europe, rising fuel and input costs and rising interest rates as central banks 
responded to inflationary pressures. The rising fuel and input costs led to higher production 
costs, which, in turn, led to higher prices for goods and services. This resulted in global 
inflation, which peaked at 8.80% in CY 2022, as the IMF World Economic Outlook reported. 
The high inflationary environment led to concerns among central banks worldwide, leading 
to tightening monetary policy, higher interest rates and increased volatility in financial 
markets. In the US, persistently high inflation led to the Federal Reserve increasing interest 
rates to control it. The Bank of England and the European Central Bank had also embarked 
on raising interest rates, resulting in tighter financial conditions and reduced demand in 
some sectors. This tightening of financial conditions further increased the challenges faced 
by the global economy, leading to a decrease in demand and slower economic growth. 
 
Despite the macroeconomic challenges, the global economy grew by 3.40% in CY 2022, with 
the European Union growing at 3.60%, the United States at 2.10% and India at 7%. In CY 
2023, the growth is projected to experience a slight decline, with a forecasted growth rate of 
2.90%, owing to advanced economies that raised interest rates to combat inflation, 
particularly in the US. The ongoing geopolitical strife is expected to continue to impact 
global growth in CY 2023. Growth in advanced economies stood at 2.70% in CY 2022 and is 
anticipated to decline 1.20% in CY 2023, while improving at 1.40% in CY 2024. Additionally, 
emerging and developing markets are expected to grow at a similar rate as CY 2022, with an 
anticipated growth rate of 4.0% in CY 2023 and further grow by 4.20% during CY 2024. 
 
The world went through an unprecedented health crisis in the form of a pandemic in 2020. 
Almost all global economies announced a lockdown starting from early 2020. This resulted 
in a contraction in global GDP by 3.3% in 2020 (Source: IMF). The global contraction was led 
by Advanced Economies (AEs), where GDP decelerated by 4.7%, as against contraction of 
2.2% by Emerging and Developing Economies (EMDEs). The decline in global GDP led to 
8.5% reduction in world trade volumes in 2020, as restrictions disrupted global supply 
chains. Led by oil, global commodity prices also fell sharply in 2020. 
 

b) Industry structure and developments.  

The Company being a Non-Operating Financial Holding Company and registered as NBFC 
with the RBI has no operations of its own except investment in its Associate company. The 
Company do not accept the deposits from public. However, the investment made by the 
Company has an impact based on the performance of Operating entity i.e., Jana Small 
Finance Bank. The Small finance business is picking up at a fast pace and is leading towards 
growth-oriented development. 
 

c) Opportunities and Threats.  

The Company does not envisage any opportunity or threat now. 
 

d) Segment–wise or product-wise performance.  

The Company is Non-Operating Financial Holding Company (NOFHC) having investment in 
the Associate Company and has classified this as its business segment and accordingly there 
are no separate reportable segments. Since the Company does not have any other operations 
on its own or any product on its own, product-wise performance is not applicable for the 
Company. 



 
 

 

e) Outlook  

As mentioned above, the Company being a NOFHC does not have any other operations 
except holding the investment in Jana Small Finance Bank Limited (“Bank”), Associate 
Company. There has been a significant improvement in the performance of the Bank during 
the Financial Year 2022-23 when compared to the previous years as envisaged in the 
Audited Financial Statements of the Bank. Your Directors hope that such progressive 
improvement in the Associate entity will help the Company to maintain investment value. 

 

f) Risks and concerns 

i. Credit Risk: The Company seeks financial data from the target company on an on-

going basis to keep a close watch on its performance parameters that form part of 

financial covenants that the Company has undertaken to ensure while borrowing 

money through the issuance of NCDs.   

ii. Strategic Risk: Risk related to overall business plans and associated economic / 

business environment. The Company does not have any operation of its own. Hence 

no strategic risk. 

iii. Operational Risk: The company doesn’t have operations of its own. However. the 

company has funds for meeting the corporate expenses. The Company has trained 

workforce and external agencies for internal audit on contract to prevent failure, 

fraud, and error. The Company has also enlisted the services of an IT expert to 

prevent risks, if any, arising out of technology failure. It, therefore, does not 

anticipate any operational risk. 

iv. Financial Risk: These risks include movement in interest rates and liquidity risks 

inherent to the business. The Company has no interest rate risk as the liabilities and 

assets of the Company are non-sensitive to market interest rates. The Company has 

redeemed all the NCDs that fell due for the year ended March 31, 2023 on the 

maturity dates. However, there is a financial risk on the NCDs which are to be repaid 

in the short-term. The company is conscious of the same and efforts are being made 

to meet the commitments.  

v. Reputational Risk: The Company does not apprehend any such risk as the practices 

followed by the Company are in alignment with industry standards. The Company 

has redeemed all the NCDs that fell due on the maturity dates. The Company keeps a 

close eye on the various regulations that are applicable and endeavours to fulfil the 

requirements with limited resources available.  

vi. Regulatory & Compliance Risk: The Company has a full-time Chief Financial 

Officer, Company Secretary, and an Accountant besides the external agencies to 

ensure that it complies with various regulatory requirements unfailingly. Regarding 

the applicability of PCA framework, the Company sought a second opinion from 

another consultant who also confirmed that the Company being a NOFHC falls under 

the Base layer and hence the PCA framework is not applicable to the Company 

currently. Notwithstanding this, the RBI can give directions for bringing any 

Company under the purview of the PCA framework as it may deem fit.  

g) Internal control systems and their adequacy.  

Your Company has an efficient Internal Control System, commensurate with the size, scale 
and complexity of its operations. To maintain its objectivity and independence, the Company 
has appointed the Internal Auditors of the Company for the year under review. The Internal 
Auditor appointed, as aforesaid, monitors and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of 
internal control system in the Company, its compliance with operating systems, accounting 



 
 

procedures and policies of the Company. Based on the internal audit report, process owners 
undertake corrective actions in their respective areas and thereby strengthen the controls. 
Significant audit observations and corrective actions, if any, are presented to the Audit 
Committee of the Board. The Company has right number of resources having specialized 
knowledge in their respective fields which helps the Company keep abreast of the 
developments in the constantly changing environment.  
 

h) Discussion on financial performance with respect to operational performance. 

The Company’s financial performance and operational performance is dependent upon the 
performance of the Bank. There has been considerable improvement in the performance of 
the Bank as compared to that of the previous year and the Bank is optimistic to continue the 
same in the years to come. 
 

i) Material developments in Human Resources / Industrial Relations front, including 
number of people employed.  

Your Company has required number of human resources having requisite knowledge, skills 
and experience for efficiently discharging his/her duties and responsibilities. The Company 
has well defined roles and responsibilities for each employee in executing their functions 
and thus enables the Company to maintain effective Corporate Governance.  
 

j) Details of significant changes (i.e., change of 25% or more as compared to the 
immediately previous financial year) in key financial ratios, along with detailed 
explanations therefor, including 

Sl. 
No. 

Particulars 
For the year 

ended  
31-March-2023 

 For the year 
ended  

31-March-2022  

 % of Change 
between two 

years  

1 Debtors Turnover  NA NA   NA   

2 Inventory Turnover   N.A   N.A   N.A  

3 Interest Coverage Ratio   N.A   N.A   N.A  

4 Current Ratio * 1.59 

 

0.04                       1.55 
5 Debt Equity Ratio #                          

(105.52) 

(                         

(105.52) 

                         

(105.52) 

 

8.04                      -113.57 
6 Operating Profit Margin   N.A   N.A   N.A  

7 Net Profit Margin   N.A   N.A   N.A  

8 Sector Specific Ratios :      

  (a) Capital Requirement  -4.17% 7.96% 3.78% 
  (b) Gearing Ratio   1.01 0.89 0.12 
  (c) Net Owned Fund  18,73,57,18,688 100.12% 

9 

details of any change in 
Return on Net Worth as 
compared to the 
immediately previous 
financial year along with a 
detailed explanation thereof 
% 

 
 N.A  

  
N.A  

                        
N.A 

* Increase in current ratio is on account of increase in cash balance of the Company during the year. 
# Increase in the Debt Equity ratio is due to the borrowing of New NCDs during the year for the purpose of investment in Jana 
Small Finance Bank Limited for its growth capital. 
$ Increase in the Consolidated CAR is due to the interest accruals and on account of general and corporate expenses. 
% Not applicable as the Company does not have operations on its own. 

 
 

 

 

 



 
 

Annexure 4 

Corporate Governance Report for the financial year 2022-23 

The Company believes that good corporate governance is essential for achieving long term 

corporate goals and enhancing value to all stakeholders. The philosophy of the Company on 

corporate governance is to attain a high level of accountability, transparency and fairness in 

its functioning and conduct of business with due emphasis on statutory compliances in 

letter and spirit. The management acknowledges and appreciates its responsibility towards 

society at large. 

 

JHL strives for excellence with the objective of enhancing shareholder value and protecting 

the interest of stakeholders. Decisions are based on a set of principles influenced by the 

values, context and culture of the organisation. All functions of the Company are discharged 

in a professionally sound, competent and transparent manner. 

 

A. Board of directors:  

a) Composition and category of directors 

 

Board of Directors 

Mr. Ramesh Ramanathan – Chairman (Promoter) 

Mr. Rajamani Muthuchamy – MD & CEO  

Mr. Abraham Chacko – Independent Director 

Mrs. Saraswathy Athmanathan - Independent Director 

Mr. S. V Ranganath - Independent Director 

 

The composition of the Board of Directors (Board) of the Company is in accordance with the 

requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and is also in compliance with the 

requirements of Regulation 17 of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred to as “Listing 

Regulations”). The Board comprises a balanced combination of Executive Directors & 

Independent Directors. The Board of Directors of the Company comprises five Directors, of 

which three are non-executive Directors and one Executive Director, including a woman 

director, being eminent persons with considerable professional expertise & experience in 

their respective fields. 

 

Matters of policy and other relevant and significant information are furnished regularly to 

the Board. To provide better corporate governance & transparency, your Board has 

constituted an Audit Committee, a Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee, a Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee, a Risk Management Committee and an Assets and Liabilities 

Management Committee and IT strategy committee. The composition and scope of each of 

the committees is in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, the Listing 

Regulations, the RBI requirements. The committees regularly look into various aspects, for 

which they have been constituted. There are no other relationships inter se the Directors of 

the Company. 



 
 

 

In compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 and / or the Listing Regulations, as applicable, 

the Board’s approvals are obtained, and Minutes of the Committees are regularly placed 

before the Board. 

 

Further, matters which are significant are also placed before the Board. 

 

All the Independent Directors possess the requisite qualifications and are experienced 

in their own fields. None of the Directors is a Director in more than Seven (7) Listed 

Companies or Ten (10) Public Limited Companies or acts as an Independent Director in 

more than Seven (7) Listed Companies. Further, none of the Directors are the members 

of more than ten committees or Chairman of more than five Committees in Public Listed 

Companies in which they are Directors. Necessary disclosures have been obtained from 

all the Directors regarding their Directorships and have been taken on record by the 

Board. The Board of Directors confirms that all the Independent Directors of the 

Company fulfil the conditions specified under SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and are 

Independent of the Management of the Company 

 

None of the Directors of the Company are disqualified in terms of section 164 (2) of the Act, 

read together with the Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014. 

Necessary disclosures have been received from all the Directors in compliance to the 

aforesaid requirements. 

  

Following are the changes in the composition of the Board:  

• Re-appointed Mr. Abraham Chacko as an Independent Director of the Company for 

the second term of five consecutive years with effect from 8th March 2023. 

• Re-appointed Mrs. Saraswathy Athmanathan as an Independent Director of the 

Company for the second term of five consecutive years with effect from 8th March 

2023. 

• The Board of Directors re-appointed Mr. Ramesh Ramanathan as a Non-Executive 

Chairman of the Company. 

 

Post end of the financial year Mr. Sakalespur Visweswaraiya Ranganath was appointed as an 

Independent Director of the Company for the period of five consecutive years with effect 

from 19th April 2023 and same is placed for approval of  the Members at the ensuing Annual 

General Meeting.  

 

The term of Mr. Rajamani Muthuchamy as a Managing Director and CEO expires on 1st 

October 2023 and Board of Directors recommends his re-appointment for 5 years and the 

same is placed for approval of  the Members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.  

b) Board Meetings  

According to Section 173 of the Companies Act, 2013, four Board Meetings are required to 

be held every year in such a manner that not more than 120 days shall intervene between 

two consecutive meetings. Further, the quorum for the Board Meeting is one-third (1/3rd) 



 
 

of the total strength (excluding interested Directors, if any) or 2 Directors, whichever is 

higher. 

 

Meetings of the Board and its Committees are normally held through Video Conferencing. 

 

During the year 2022-23, 6 Meetings of the Board of Directors were convened. The meetings 

of the Board vis-a-vis attendance of the Directors are provided herein below: 

 
Sl. 

No. 

BM Date Mr. Ramesh 

Ramanathan 

Mr. Rajamani 

Muthuchamy  

Mr. Abraham 

Chacko 

Mrs. 

Saraswathy 

Athmanathan 

1.  May 30, 2022    - 

2.  June 29, 2022     

3.  July 28, 2022     

4.  Aug 6, 2022     

5.  Nov 14, 2022 -    

6.  Feb 7, 2023     

 

Attendance of Directors at the AGM Annual General Meeting 
Sl. 

No. 

BM Date Mr. Ramesh 

Ramanathan 

Mr. Rajamani 

Muthuchamy  

Mr. Abraham 

Chacko 

Mrs. Saraswathy 

Athmanathan 

1 Sep 21, 2022 -   - 

 

c) Number of other board of directors or committees in which a director is a member 

or chairperson, including separately the names of the listed entities where the 

person is a director and the category of directorship. 

 

Composition of Board and Directorship held as on March 31, 2023 

 

 Mr. Ramesh 

Ramanathan 
Mr. Rajamani 

Muthuchamy  
Mr. Abraham 

Chacko 
Mrs. 

Saraswathy 

Athmanathan 

Directorships 7 3 7 2 

Committee 

Memberships# 

3 2 2 3 

Chairmanship 

of Committees# 

1 - 1 - 

Other Listed 

entities on 

which the 

Director is a 

Director. 

Jana Capital 

Ltd.* 

Jana Small 

Finance Bank 

Ltd. 

Jana Capital 

Ltd.* 

Muthoot 

Finance Limited 

Jana Capital 

Ltd.* 

 

Jana Capital 

Ltd.* 

*Debt listed Company is considered as listed entity. 
$Denotes Directorships in public companies and private companies pursuant to Section 165 of the Companies Act, 

2013. 

 
# Denotes Memberships of Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee only of other Indian public 

limited companies listed/ unlisted pursuant to Regulation 26 of the Listing Regulations, Chairmanship of Audit 



 
 

Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee only of Indian listed companies. The limit of the committees on 

which a director may serve in all public limited companies, whether listed or not, is included and all other companies 

including private limited companies, foreign companies, high value debt listed entities and companies under Section 8 

of the Companies Act, 2013 are excluded. 
 

d) Number of shares and convertible instruments held by non- executive directors.  

There are no convertible instruments issued by the Company. Mr. Ramesh Ramanathan, 

Chairman holds 10 equity shares in the Company as a nominee of Jana Capital Limited. 

 

e) Web link where details of familiarisation programmes imparted to independent 

directors is disclosed. 

With a view to familiarising the Directors including independent directors of the Company 

their roles, rights, responsibilities in the Company, nature of the industry in which the 

Company operates, the business model of the Company, etc., and as required under Listing 

Regulation 25(7), the Company held familiarisation programmes on 16th March 2023 to its 

Independent Directors. The MD and CEO and the CFO of the Company also have a one-on-

one discussion with the Directors on a regular basis.  

 

The above initiatives help the Directors to understand and keep themselves updated about 

the Company, its business and the regulatory framework in which the Company operates 

and equip themselves to effectively fulfil their role as Directors of the Company. 

 

The details regarding the familiarisation programmes have been placed on the website 

(https://janaholdings.co.in/) of the Company.  

 

f) A chart or a matrix setting out the skills/expertise/competence of the board of 

directors: 

The Company is yet to formally identify and list the core skills/expertise/competencies as 

required in the context of its business(es) and sector(s) and those actually available with 

the board; and the names of directors who have such skills / expertise / competence. 

 

g) The Board of Directors confirm that in the opinion of the board, the independent 

directors fulfil the conditions specified in these regulations and are independent of the 

management. 

 

h) Detailed reasons for the resignation of an independent director who resigns 

before the expiry of his tenure along with a confirmation by such director that 

there are no other material reasons other than those provided. - During the year 

under review, there was no resignation by an Independent Director. 

 

B. Audit committee  

The Audit Committee was constituted on March 8, 2018 & its meetings are normally held 

through Video Conferencing and precedes the meeting of Board of Directors. 

 

In terms of the Para 3 (1) of the Non - Banking Financial Companies - Corporate Governance 

(Reserve Bank) Directions 2015 and in terms of Section 177 of the Companies Act 2013, the 



 
 

Company is required to constitute an Audit Committee consisting of not less than three 

members of its Board of Directors. Such Audit Committee constituted shall have the same 

powers, functions and duties as laid down in Section 177 of the Companies Act 2013. As per 

Section 177 of the Companies Act 2013, the Audit committee shall consist of minimum of 

three Directors with Independent Directors forming a majority. 

 

The Audit committee reviews information as per the role stated in the Listing Regulations 

and the Companies Act, 2013. The broad role of the said Committee is to review: 

i. financial reporting process. 

ii. adequacy of internal control systems. 

iii. the financial statements for approval of the Board. 

iv. the performance of statutory and internal auditors and 

v. review as per mandatory requirement stated in the Listing Regulations. 

 

The Audit Committee comprised the following: 

Sl. No. Name of the Director Chairman/Member 

1 Mr. Abraham Chacko Chairman 

2 Mrs. Saraswathy Athmanathan Member 

3 Mr. Ramesh Ramanathan Member 

 

Meetings and attendance during the year.  

Sl. 

No. 

Audit 

Committee 

Date 

Mr. Ramesh 

Ramanathan 

Mr. Abraham 

Chacko 

Mrs. Saraswathy 

Athmanathan 

1.  May 30, 

2022 

  - 

2.  June 29, 

2022 

   

3.  August 6, 

2022 

   

4.  November 

14, 2022 

-   

5.  February 7, 

2023 

   

 

As per Regulation 18, the audit committee shall have minimum three directors as 

members. At least two-thirds of the members of audit committee shall be independent 

directors.  

 

The quorum for audit committee meetings shall either be two members or one-third of 

the members of the audit committee, whichever is greater, with at least two 

independent directors. The Company being a High-Value Debt Listed (HVDL) Company  

the said requirement is on a ‘comply or explain’ basis until March 31, 2024, and on a 

mandatory basis thereafter. During the year under review out of 2 Independent 

Directors 1 Independent Director could not take part in May 30, 2022 Audit Committee 



 
 

meeting due to ill health of the Independent Director. To have adequate Independent 

Directors for attending the meetings, the Company has appointed another Independent 

Directors with effect from 19th April 2023, hence the Company will not face such 

inconsistencies in future.  

 

C. Nomination and Remuneration Committee  

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee was constituted on March 8, 2018. 

 

The Committee assists the Board in establishing remuneration policies and practices 

broadly relating to: 

a) Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and 

independence of a director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the 

remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees. 

b) Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board. 

c) Devising a policy on Board diversity. 

d) Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in 

senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down and recommend to the Board 

their appointment and removal. 

e) whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, 

based on the report of performance evaluation of independent directors. 

f) recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior 

management.  

 

Nomination & Remuneration Policy is placed on the Company’s website 

https://janaholdings.co.in. 

 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprise the following: 

Sl. No. Name of the Director Chairman/Member 

1 Mrs. Saraswathy Athmanathan Chairperson 

2 Mr. Abraham Chacko Member 

3 Mr. Ramesh Ramanathan Member 

 

Meeting and attendance during the year: 
Sl. 

No. 

NRC Date Mr. Ramesh 

Ramanathan 

Mr. Abraham 

Chacko 

Mrs. Saraswathy 

Athmanathan 

1.  May 30, 2022   - 

2.  June 29, 2022    

3.  February 7, 

2023 

-   

 

Performance evaluation criteria for independent directors. 

Your Company understands the requirements of an effective Board evaluation process and 

accordingly conducts the Performance Evaluation every year in respect of the following: 

a) Board of Directors as a whole 

b) Committee of Board of Directors 



 
 

c) Individual Directors including Chairman of the Board of Directors.  

 

D. Stakeholders’ relationship committee  

i. Name of the non-executive director heading the committee: Mr. Ramesh 

Ramanathan 

ii. Name and designation of the compliance officer: Vidya Sridharan, Company 

Secretary and Compliance Officer. 

iii. Number of shareholders’ complaints received during the financial year: Nil 

iv. Number of complaints not solved to the satisfaction of shareholders:  Nil 

v. Number of pending complaints:  Nil 

 

The Board of Directors constituted the Stakeholders Relationship Committee at the 

Board meeting held on February 12, 2022, consisting of following Members: 

 

Sl. No. Name of the Director Chairman/Member 

1 Mr. Ramesh Ramanathan Chairman 

2 Mr. Rajamani Muthuchamy Member 

3 Mrs. Saraswathy Athmanathan Member 

 

Meeting and attendance during the year: 
Sl. 

No. 

SRC Date Mr. Ramesh 

Ramanathan 

Mr. Rajamani 

Muthuchamy 

Mrs. Saraswathy 

Athmanathan 

1 May 30, 2022   - 

 

E. Risk management committee 

 

(a) Brief description of terms of reference  

The Risk Management Committee shall ensure in identifying, assessing and prioritizing the 

major risks faced by the Company and developing strategies to minimize, monitor, and 

control the probable and/or impact of risks. 

 

The Board of Directors constituted the Risk Management Committee at the Board 

meeting held on March 8, 2018, consisting of following Members: 

 

Sl. No. Name of the Director Chairman/Member 

1 Mr. Ramesh Ramanathan Chairman 

2 Mr. Rajamani Muthuchamy Member 

3 Mr. Abraham Chacko Member 

4 Mr. Gopalakrishnan. S Member 

 

 

 

 



 
 

Meeting and attendance during the year: 

 
Sl. 

No. 

RMC Date Ramesh 

Ramanathan 

Rajamani 

Muthuchamy 

Abraham Chacko Gopalakrishnan. 

S 

1.  May 30, 2022     

2.  August 6, 2022     

3.  November 14, 

2022 

-    

4.  February 7, 

2023 

    

 

F. Asset and Liability Management Committee 

The Board of Directors constituted the Asset and Liability Management Committee 

consisting of following Members: 
 

Sl. No. Name of the Director Chairman/Member 

1 Mr. Abraham Chacko  Chairman 

2 Mr. Rajamani Muthuchamy Member 

3 Mr. Ramesh Ramanathan Member 

4 Mr. Gopalakrishnan. S Member 

 

Meeting and attendance during the year: 

 
Sl. 

No. 

ALM Date Abraham 

Chacko 

 

Rajamani 

Muthuchamy 

Ramesh 

Ramanathan 

Gopalakrishnan. 

S 

1.  May 30, 2022     

2.  August 6, 2022     

3.  November 14, 

2022 

  -  

4.  February 7, 

2023 

    

 

G. IT strategy committee 

The Board of Directors constituted the IT strategy Committee consisting of following 

Members: 

Sl. 

No. 

Name of the Director Chairman/Member 

1 Mr. Rajamani Muthuchamy Chairman 

2 Mr. Abraham Chacko Member 

3 Mr. Gopalakrishnan. S Member 

4 Mr. Babu Thomas Member 

 

 

 



 
 

Meeting and attendance during the year: 

 
Sl. 

No. 

ITS Date Rajamani 

Muthuchamy 

Abraham 

Chacko 

 

Gopalakrishnan. 

S 

Babu Thomas 

1.  August 6, 

2022 

   - 

 

H. Remuneration of directors 

(a) All pecuniary relationship or transactions of the non-executive directors vis-à-vis the listed 

entity- Nil. 

 

(b) Criteria of making payments to non-executive directors - Non-executive Directors 

Independent Directors are paid sitting fees for attending the meetings of the Board and 

Committees at the rate of Rs. 50,000/- for the Board and Committee meetings put 

together as per provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other 

applicable provisions, if any, and pursuant to the Articles of Association of the 

company.” 

 

(c) Disclosures with respect to remuneration: in addition to disclosures required under the 

Companies Act, 2013, the following disclosures are made:  

 

(i) All elements of remuneration package of individual directors summarized under major 

groups, such as salary, benefits, bonuses, stock options, pension etc;  

Name of the Director Remuneration 

Mr. Ramesh Ramanathan Nil 

Mr. Abraham Chacko Sitting fees are being paid for attending the 

Board and Committee meetings put 

together at Rs. 50,000 per sitting. For the 

year under review sitting fees of                        

Rs. 3,00,000 were paid for attending 

various Board and Committee meetings. 

Mrs. Saraswathy Athmanathan Sitting fees are being paid for attending the 

Board and Committee meetings put 

together at Rs. 50,000 per sitting. For the 

year under review sitting fees of                         

Rs. 2,50,000 were paid for attending 

various Board and Committee meetings. 

Mr. Rajamani Muthuchamy As per the table below 

Mr. S. V Ranganath Not applicable 

 

 

 



 
 

Rajamani Muthuchamy  Upto 31st March 
2023 

Revision @ 25% 
w.e.f 1st April 
2023* 

Particulars  Amt (Rs.) per 
Annum  

Amt (Rs.) per 
Annum  

Fixed Compensation     

Basic  34,39,800   42,99,750 

HRA  17,19,900   21,49,875 

Special Allowance  19,62,106   24,52,632 

Misc. Allowance  14,78,194   18,47,742 

Employer PF  NIL    

Gross Salary(A)  86,00,000  1,07,50,000 

Perquisites  Nil  Nil 

Driver Salary  Nil  Nil 

Total Perquisites (B)  Nil  Nil 

Total (A) + (B)  86,00,000  1,07,50,000 

Variable Pay  Nil  Nil 

GRAND TOTAL  86,00,000  1,07,50,000 

 

*subject to the approval of the shareholders at the ensuing general meeting. 
 

(ii) service contracts, notice period, severance fees: Notice period for MD and CEO is 2 months 

being Executive Director. There is no notice period for other Directors. There are no service 

contracts and severance fees. 

 

(iii) stock option details, if any and whether issued at a discount as well as the period over which 

accrued and over which exercisable - There are no stock options. 

 

I. General body meetings 

a) The details of the last three Annual General Meetings held are as follows: 

Financial year Date Time Location  

2021-22 21 September 2022 11.00 AM Video Conferencing 

2020-21 5 October 2021 11.00 AM Video Conferencing 

2019-20 15 December 2020 3.30 PM Video Conferencing 

 

b) The Special Resolutions passed by the Company in its 3rd, 4th and 5th AGM(s) are as under 

Date of AGM AGM No. Business Transacted by Special Resolution 

15th December 2020 4th AGM Alteration of Articles of Association of the Company 

5th October 2021 5th AGM i) Fixing the borrowing powers of the Board upto Rs. 

3,000 crores  

ii)Granting approval for creation of charge/mortgage 

on the assets of the Company upto Rs. 3,000 crores. 

iii) Issue non-convertible debentures on a private 

placement basis for not exceeding Rs. 1,000 crores 

during the year 



 
 

iv)To consider and approve the payment of 

remuneration to Mr. Rajamani Muthuchamy, MD and 

CEO of the Company for a further period of 2 (Two) 

years w.e.f. 1st October 2021 

21 September 2022 6th AGM i)Increase in remuneration to Mr. Rajamani 

Muthuchamy, MD and CEO of the Company 

ii)Re-appointment of Mr. Abraham Chacko as an 

Independent Director of the Company for the second 

term of five consecutive years 

iii)Re-appointment of Mrs. Saraswathy Athmanathan 

as an Independent Director of the Company for the 

second term of five consecutive years 

 

Postal Ballot 

The Company has not passed any resolution by way of Postal Ballot during the Financial 

year 2022-2023. 

 

J. Means of communication:  

(a) Furnishing and publication of financial results. 

The Financial Results (Quarterly, Half yearly & Yearly), post approval of the Board of 

Directors, are furnished to BSE, within the prescribed timelines.  

Further, the financial results of the Company are normally published in “Business Standard” 

within 2 working days after their approval by the Board. 

(c) any website, where displayed: https://janaholdings.co.in/ 

(d) whether it also displays official news releases: Nil 

(e) presentations made to institutional investors or to the analysts: Nil 

 

K. Succession planning 

 

The Company is a non-operating financial holding company registered with the RBI having 

4 employees which includes 3 KMPs i.e., MD & CEO, CS and CFO. The Board of Directors of 

the Company has approved the succession planning for KMPs at the Board Meeting held on 

7th February 2023 and same has been implemented. 

 

L. General shareholder information:  

Annual general meeting - date, 

time and venue;  

July 13, 2023, 11.00 AM through Video 

Conferencing 

Financial year; 2022-23 

Dividend payment date;  Nil 

Name and address of each stock 

exchange(s) at which the listed 

entity's securities are listed and a 

confirmation about payment of 

The Company has listed debentures on the 

BSE and the Company has paid the annual 

listing fees to the BSE. 

BSE Limited,  
Listing Operations 



 
 

annual listing fee to each of such 

stock exchange(s);  

P J Towers, Dalal Street,  
Mumbai - 400001 

Stock Code;  Below is the listed debentures of the 
Company during the period. 
Following are the listed debentures of the 
Company as on March 31, 2023. 
957043 Series A INE682V07010 
957044 Series B INE682V07028 
957045 Series C INE682V07036 
957046 Series D INE682V07044 
957047 Series E INE682V07051 
957057 Series F INE682V07069 
957058 Series G INE682V07077 
957811 Series H INE682V07085 
958550 Series I INE682V07093 
973676 Series K INE682V08091 
973709 Series L 2 INE682V07150 
Unlisted Series M INE682V08117 
 Unlisted Series N INE682V08125 
973884 Series O INE682V08133 
973967   Series P   INE682V08141 

Market price data- high, low 

during each month in last 

financial year; 

Not applicable as the equity shares are not 

listed. 

Performance in comparison to 

broad-based indices such as BSE 

Sensex, CRISIL Index etc;  

Not applicable as the equity shares are not 

listed. 

In case the securities are 

suspended from trading, the 

directors report shall explain the 

reason thereof; 

During the period under the review there 

were no NCDs due for repayments.  

Registrar to an issue and share 

transfer agents;  

KFIN TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED 

Corporate Registry, No.59, Skanda, Puttanna 

Road, Basavanagudi, Bengaluru- 560 004 

Share Transfer System; Kfin Technologies Limited is the Share 

Transfer Agent of the Company for both 

physical and electronic mode of transfer of 

the Company’s shares. Transfer of shares 

held in the physical mode are approved 

within a maximum period of 15 days, if found 

in order. Shares under objection are returned 

within 7 days. The Company has facilitated 

dematerialisation of the equity shares. The 

Demat requests are processed within 21 days 

from the date of request.  

Dematerialization of shares and The Company has facilitated 



 
 

liquidity; dematerialisation of equity shares, though 

the Company is exempted being wholly 

owned subsidiary company as per 

Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of 

Securities) Rules, 2014. 

Outstanding global depository 

receipts or American depository 

receipts or warrants or any 

convertible instruments, 

conversion date and likely 

impact on equity;  

Nil 

Commodity price risk or foreign 

exchange risk and hedging 

activities; 

Nil 

Plant locations;  Nil. The Company is a Non-Operating 

Financial Holding Company registered with 

the RBI. The Company has no operations on 

its own and hence no plant locations. 

Address for correspondence. Jana Holdings Limited 
2nd Floor, No. 80, 5th Cross, 4th Main, 
Maruthi Extension, Bangalore - 560021 

List of all credit ratings obtained 

by the entity along with any 

revisions thereto during the 

relevant financial year, for all 

debt instruments of such entity 

or any fixed deposit programme 

or any scheme or proposal of the 

listed entity involving 

mobilization of funds, whether in 

India or abroad. 

During the period under review there were 

down-grades in the rating 

 

ICRA Limited:   PP-MLD [ICRA]B (Negative)  

India Ratings and Research Pvt Ltd.:IND B-

.(Negative) 

 

Distribution of Shareholding 

Category 

(Amount) 

Number of 

cases 

% of cases Total shares Amount % of 

Amount 

1-5000 6 85.714286 60 600 0.001913 

100001 & 

Above 

1 14.285714 31,37,076 3,13,70,760 99.998087 

Total 7 100 31,37,136 3,13,71,360 
 

100 

M. Other Disclosures:  

(a) Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions that may have potential 

conflict with the interests of listed entity at large; - Nil 

 



 
 

(b) Details of non-compliance by the listed entity, penalties, strictures imposed on the listed 

entity by stock exchange(s) or the board or any statutory authority, on any matter related to 

capital markets, during the last three years;  

Fine/penalty details 

Sl.No Particulars Fine Status 

1.  Fine under regulation 50(1) -delay 
in furnishing intimation about the 
Board meeting 

Rs. 5000 Same was complied. 
Waiver obtained for the 
said fine. 

2.  Reg 54(2) fine paid for non 
mentioning of asset cover details 
in the financials 

Rs. 34220  Fines paid 

3.  Additional fine paid for Reg 54(2) Rs. 2,15,940 Fines paid 

4.  Rg 57(4) non submission of details 
of interest/dividend/principal 
obligations during the quarter 

Rs. 7000 Not applicable during the 
quarter. Waiver obtained 

5.  Reg 60- delay in record date 
intimation 

Rs. 10,000 Fine paid 

6.  Reg 53(2) Non‐submission of 
annual report within 
the period prescribed under this 
regulation. 

Rs. 42000 Fine paid 

7.  Reg 57(1)- fine  RS. 25,41,000 Regulation not applicable. 
Waiver obtained 

 

(c) Details of the establishment of vigil mechanism/whistle-blower policy, and affirmation that 

no personnel has been denied access to the audit committee- Whistle Blower policy was 

formulated by the Board of Directors at the meeting held on March 30, 2020, and thereafter 

reviewed on timely basis. No person has been denied access to the audit committee during 

the year. 

 

(d) Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the non-mandatory 

requirements; The Company has complied with mandatory requirements. 

 

(e) Web link where policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries is disclosed; The Company 

does not have any subsidiary and hence the said policy is not applicable. 

 

(f) Web link where policy on dealing with related party transactions; 

https://janaholdings.co.in/JHL_Related-party-transaction-policy.pdf. 

 

(g) Disclosure of commodity price risks and commodity hedging activities: Not applicable. 

 



 
 

(h) Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutions 

placement as specified under Regulation 32(7A); Regulation 32(7A) is not applicable to the 

Company. 

 

(i) A certificate from a company secretary in practice that none of the directors on the board of 

the company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as 

directors of companies by the Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory 

authority. – Not applicable as Regulation 34(3) is not applicable for HVDL Company. 

 

(j) Where the board had not accepted any recommendation of any committee of the board, 

which is mandatorily required, in the relevant financial year, the same to be disclosed along 

with reasons thereof: Nil 

 

(k) Total fees for all services paid by the listed entity and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated 

basis, to the statutory auditor and all entities in the network firm/network entity of which the 

statutory auditor is a part. 

The Company paid Rs. 5.723 Lakhs during the year under review to the Statutory Auditors 

for carrying out Limited review of financials on quarterly and half yearly basis, Statutory 

Audit and for providing various Certificates by the Statutory Auditors. 

(l) Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 

Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013:  

a. Number of complaints filed during the financial year: Nil 

b. Number of complaints disposed of during the financial year: Nil 

c. Number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year: Nil 

 

(m) Disclosure by listed entity and its subsidiaries of Loans and advances in the nature of loans 

to firms/companies in which directors are interested by name and amount.  

Party name Jana Capital Limited  

Nature of relationship Holding Company 

Purpose Loans given to Holding 

Company for its General 

Corporate Expenses. 
 

 

Particulars As at 31/3/2023 As at 31/3/2022 

in Thousands  

Jana Capital Limited  

At the commencement of the year 

Add: Given during the year 

Less: Repaid during the year 

At the end of the year 

 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil  

 

Nil 

Rs. 9,119.80  

Nil 

Rs. 9,119.80 

N. Non-compliance with any requirement of corporate governance report of sub-paras (2) to 

(10) above, with reasons thereof shall be disclosed.  

 



 
 

During the year under review the Company could not comply with the following: 

1. As per Regulation 18(2)(b), the quorum required for the Audit Committee shall 

either two members or one third of the members of the audit committee, whichever 

is greater, with at least two independent directors. The Company being a high value 

debt listed Company (HVDL Company) the said compliance is on a ‘comply or 

explain’ basis until March 31, 2023 which has been extended upto March 31, 2024, 

and on a mandatory basis thereafter. During the year under review out of 2 

Independent Directors 1 Independent Director could not take part in 1 meeting out 

of 5 meetings on 30th May 2022 due to ill health of the Independent Director. The 

Company will ensure such inconsistencies are taken care in future and plan its 

meetings accordingly.  

 

O. The corporate governance report shall also disclose the extent to which the discretionary 

requirements as specified in Part E of Schedule II have been adopted.  

As regards Discretionary Requirements specified in Part E of Schedule II of the SEBI Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the company has complied 

with items D of the said Schedule. 

 

P. The disclosures of the compliance with corporate governance requirements specified in 

regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 shall be 

made in the section on corporate governance of the annual report – The Company has 

complied with Regulation 17 to 27 except for those mentioned above.  

 

Q. Declaration signed by the chief executive officer stating that the members of board of 

directors and senior management personnel have affirmed compliance with the code of 

conduct of board of directors and senior management - We declare that all Board 

Members and Senior Management personnel have affirmed compliance with the code of 

conduct for the Financial Year 2022-23. 

 

R. Compliance certificate from either the auditors or practicing company secretaries 

regarding compliance of conditions of corporate governance shall be annexed with the 

directors’ report - Certificate from Practicing Company Secretary is enclosed. 

 

S. Disclosures with respect to demat suspense account/ unclaimed suspense account  

(a) Aggregate number of shareholders 

and the outstanding shares in the 

suspense account lying at the 

beginning of the year;  

The Company has 7 shareholders as on the 

end of the financial year. 

(b) Number of shareholders who 

approached listed entity for transfer of 

shares from suspense account during 

the year; 

Nil 

(c) Number of shareholders to whom 

shares were transferred from 

suspense account during the year;  

Nil 



 
 

(d) Aggregate number of shareholders 

and the outstanding shares in the 

suspense account lying at the end of 

the year;  

Nil 

(e) That the voting rights on these 

shares shall remain frozen till the 

rightful owner of such shares claims 

the shares.  

NA 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

CEO & CFO certification 

 

To  

The Board of Directors  

Jana Holdings Limited  

Bangalore-560021  

 

Sub: CEO & CFO Certification.  

Ref: As per Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations 

 

A. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended 

31.03.2023 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:  

(1) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or 

contain statements that might be misleading.  

(2) these statements together present a true and fair view of the listed entity’s affairs and are in 

compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.  

B. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the 

Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the listed entity’s code of 

conduct.  

C. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial 

reporting and we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the listed entity 

pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit 

Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we 

are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies. 

D. We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee,  

(1) Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year.  

(2) Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been 

disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and  

(3) Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, 

if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the listed entity’s internal 

control system over financial reporting. 

 

 

 

Sd/-         Sd/- 

 

Rajamani Muthuchamy      Gopalakrishnan. S 

MD & CEO        Chief Financial Officer  

 















us Nagendra D. Rao, B.Com., LLB., F.C.S.

Practising Company Secretary 

Secretarial Compliance Report of Jana Holdings Limited having Corporate 
Identification Number U74900KA2016PLC086838 ('the listed entity') for the financial year 
ended 31st March, 2023. 

I have examined: 

(a) all the documents and records made available to us and explanation provided by Jana Holdings
Limited ("the listed entity"),

(b) the filings/ submissions made by the listed entity to the stock exchanges,

(c) website of the listed entity,

(d) any other document/ filing, as may be relevant, which has been relied upon to make this
certification,

for the year ended 31st March, 2023 ("Review Period") in respect of compliance with the provisions 
of: 

(a) the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ("SEBI Act") and the Regulations,
circulars, guidelines issued thereunder; and

(b) the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ("SCRA"), rules made thereunder and the
Regulations, circulars, guidelines issued thereunder by the Securities and Exchange Board of India
("SEBI");

The specific Regulations, whose provisions and the circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder, have 
been examined, include:-

(a) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015; [To the extent Applicable to Non-Convertible Debentures/ 'high value
debt listed entity' only];

(b) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018; [Not Applicable];

(c) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations,2011; [Not Applicable]

(d) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 [Not
Applicable];

(e) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity)
Regulations, 2021 [Not Applicable];

"Vagdevi", 543/A, 7th Main, 3rd Cross, S.L. Bhyrapp<1Road, Hanumantha Nagar. Bengaluru - 560 019 
Telephone: 080-2650 9004. Mobile: 99451 75787, E-mail: nagendradrao@gmail.com / nagendra_d_rao@yahoo.co.in 

GSTIN : 29ADAPR0287M1Z2 



(f) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities)
Regulations, 2021;

(g) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

and circulars and guidelines issued thereunder 

I. I hereby report that, during the Review Period the compliance status of the listed entity is
appended as below:

Sr. 
No. 

1 

2 

Particulars 

Secretarial Standards: 

The compliances of the listed entity are in 
accordance with the applicable Secretarial 
Standards (SS) issued by the Institute of 
Company Secretaries India (ICSI). 

Adoption and timely updation of the 
Policies: 

• All applicable policies under SEBI
Regulations are adopted with the
approval of board of directors of the
listed entities

• All the policies are in conformity with
SEBI Regulations and have been
reviewed & updated on time, as per the
regulations/circulars/guidelines issued
by SEBI

2 

Compliance Observations /Remarks by 
Status PCS* 

(Yes/No/ NA) 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Except to the extent of policy 
on Archival, the company 
have all other policies in place 
as applicable to the Listed 
Entity. 

Further, Policy on Board 
diversity also needs to be 
adopted. Presently the same 
is on comply and explain basis 
until March 31, 2023, in terms 

of the regulation 15 of the 
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 
2015. 

Accordingly, the Company 
needs to explain the above 
in the quarterly compliance 
report on Corporate 
Governance. 



3 

4 

5 

6 

7. 

Maintenance and disclosures on 
Website: 

• The Listed entity is maintaining a
functional website

• Timely dissemination of the documents/
information under a separate section on
the website

• Web-links provided in annual corporate
governance reports under Regulation
27(2) are accurate and specific which re­
directs to the relevant document(s)/
section of the website.

Disqualification of Director: 

None of the Director(s) of the Company 
is/are disqualified under Section 164 of 
Companies Act, 2013 as confirmed by the 
listed entity. 

Details related to Subsidiaries of listed 
entities have been examined w.r.t.: 

(a) Identification of material subsidiary
companies

(b) Disclosure requirement of material as
well as other subsidiaries

Preservation of Documents: 

The listed entity is preserving and 
maintaining records as prescribed under 
SEBI Regulations and disposal of records 
as per Policy of Preservation of Documents 
and Archival policy prescribed under SEBI 
LODR Reaulations, 2015. 

Performance Evaluation: 

The listed entity has conducted 
performance evaluation of the Board, 
Independent Directors and the Committees 
at the start of every financial year/during the 
financial year as prescribed in SEBI 
Regulations. 

3 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

NA 

Yes 

The company does not have 
any subsidiaries. 

NA As per the regulation 15 of the 
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 
2015, Regulation 16 to 
Regulation 27 have been 
made applicable to the 
company on a 'comply or 

_ explain' basis until March 31, 
�Qr<._1- � 2023. Accordingly, the 

//c:;Y , 7'<.. Company needs to explain the 



8 

9 

10 

Related Party Transactions: 

(a) The listed entity has obtained prior
approval of Audit Committee for all related
party transactions; or

(b) The listed entity has provided detailed
reasons along with confirmation whether
the transactions were subsequently
approved/ratified/rejected by the Audit
Committee, in case no prior approval has
been obtained.

Disclosure of events or information: 

The listed entity has provided all the 
required disclosure(s) under Regulation 30 
along with Schedule Ill of SEBI LODR 
Regulations, 2015 within the time limits 
prescribed thereunder 

Prohibition of Insider Trading: 

The listed entity is in compliance with 
Regulation 3(5) & 3(6) SEBI (Prohibition of 
Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015. 

4 

Yes 

NA 

N.A. 

Yes 

reasons for not conducting 
performance evaluation of the 
Independent Directors during 
the period under review in the 
quarterly compliance report 
on Corporate Governance. 

The listed entity has obtained 
prior approval of Audit 
Committee for all Related 
Party transactions. 

The company being a High 
Value Debt Listed Company, 
Regulation 30 is not applicable 
to the company. 

However, Part B of Schedule 
111 is applicable to the 
company. 

The company has not filed 
Outcome of the Board 
meetings dated May 30, 2022, 
August 06, 2022, November 
14, 2022 and February 07, 
2023 within 30 minutes of the 
closure of the Board meetings 
with SSE, as required under 
Schedule Ill Part B of the SEBI 
(LODR) Regulations, 2015 
read with Reoulation 51 (2). 



11 

12 

Actions taken by SEBI or Stock 
Exchange(s), if any: 

No action(s) has been taken against the 
listed entity/ its promoters/ directors/ 
subsidiaries either by SEBI or by Stock 
Exchanges (including under the Standard 
Operating Procedures issued by SEBI 
through various circulars) under SEBI 
Regulations and circulars/ guidelines 
issued thereunder except as provided 
under separate paragraph herein ("*). 

Additional Non-compliances, if any: 

No additional non-compliance observed for 
any SEBI regulation/circular/guidance note 
etc. 

Yes 

Yes 

11. Compliances related to resignation of statutory auditors from listed entities and their material
subsidiaries as per SEBI Circular CIR/CFD/CMD1 /114/2019 dated 18th October, 2019:

Sr. 
No. 

Particulars Compliance 
Status 

(Yes/No/ NA) 

Observations /Remarks by 
PCS* 

1. Compliances with the following conditions while appointing/re-appointing an auditor

i. If the auditor has resigned within 45 days
from the end of a quarter of a financial year,
the auditor before such resignation, has
issued the limited review/ audit report for
such quarter; or

ii. If the auditor has resigned after 45 days from
the end of a quarter of a financial year, the
auditor before such resignation, has issued
the limited review/ audit report for such
quarter as well as the next quarter; or

iii. If the auditor has signed the limited review/
audit report for the first three quarters of a
financial year, the auditor before such
resignation, has issued the limited review/
audit report for the last quarter of such
financial year as well as the audit report for
such financial year.

5 

NA 

NA 

NA 

The Auditors of the company 
have . not resigned during the 
period under review. 

The Auditors of the company 
have not resigned during the 
period under review. 

The Auditors of the company 
have not resigned during the 
period under review. 



2. Other conditions relating to resignation of statutory auditor

i. Reporting of concerns by Auditor with
respect to the listed entity/its material
subsidiary to the Audit Committee:

a. In case of any concern with the management
of the listed entity/material subsidiary such
as non-availability of information / non­
cooperation by the management which has
hampered the audit process, the auditor has
approached the Chairman of the Audit
Committee of the listed entity and the Audit
Committee shall receive such concern
directly and immediately without specifically
waiting for the quarterly Audit Committee
meetings.

b. In case the auditor proposes to resign, all
concerns with respect to the proposed
resignation, along with relevant documents
has been brought to the notice of the Audit
Committee. In cases where the proposed
resignation is due to non-receipt of
information / explanation from the company,
the auditor has informed the Audit
Committee the details of information I
explanation sought and not provided by the
management, as applicable.

c. The Audit Committee I Board of Directors, as
the case may be, deliberated on the matter
on receipt of such information from the
auditor relating to the proposal to resign as
mentioned above and communicate its views
to the management and the auditor.

ii. Disclaimer in case of non-receipt of
information:

The auditor has provided an appropriate 
disclaimer in its audit report, which is in 
accordance with the Standards of Auditing as 
specified by ICAI / NFRA, in case where the 
listed entity/ its material subsidiary has not 
provided information as required by the 
auditor. 

6 

NA 

NA 

NA 

NA 

NA 

The Auditors of the company 
have not resigned during the 
period under review. 

The Auditors of the company 
have not resigned during the 
period under review. 

The Auditors of the company 
have not resigned during the 
period under review. 

The Auditors of the company 
have not resigned during the 
period under review. 

The Auditors of the company 
have not resigned during the 
period under review. 



The listed entity / its material subsidiary has NA The Auditors of the company 
3. obtained information from the Auditor upon have not resigned during the 

resignation, in the format as specified in year under review. 
Annexure- A in SEBI Circular CIR/ 
CFD/CMD1 /114/2019 dated 18th October, 2019 

Ill (a)(**) The listed entity has complied with the provisions of the above Regulations and circulars/ 
guidelines issued thereunder, except in respect of matters specified below: 

Sr. Com- Regu- Dev iat io Actio Type of Details Fine Obser- Man- Re-

N pliance lationl ns n Action of Amou vationsl age- mark 

0 Require Circul Take (Advisory! Violatio nt Remarks ment s 

ment arNo. n by Clarificatio n of the Re-

(Regu- the nl Practicin spons 

lationsl listed Fine!Show g e 

circular entity Cause Compan 

sf ' if Notice! y 

guide- any Warning, Secretar 

lines etc.) y 

includin 

g 
specific 
clause) 

As detailed under Annexure -1 

(b) The listed entity has taken the following actions to comply with the observations made in previous
reports: 

Sr. Com- Regu-
N pliance lation/ 
o. Requir Circul 

ement arNo. 
(Regu-
lations 
I 

circula 
rs/ 

guide-
lines 
includi 
ng 
specifi 
C 

clause) 

Place: Bengaluru 
Date: May 20, 2023 

Deviatio 
ns 

Acti Type of Details Fine Obser- Man- Re-

on Action of Amou vations/ age- mar 

Take (Advisory Violati nt Remark ment ks 

n by I on s of the Re-

Clarificati Practici spon 

on/ ng se 

Fine/Sho Compa 

wCause ny 

Notice/ Secreta 

Warning, ry 
etc.) 

As detailed under Annexure - II 
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Nagendra D. Rao 
Practising Company Secretary 
Membership No. FCS - 5553 
Certificate of Practice - 7731 

Peer Reviewed Unit 
Peer Review Certificate No.: 672/2020 

UDIN: F005553E000340151 



Annex1ure - I 

(a)(**) The listed entity has complied with the provisions of the above Regulations and circulars( guidelines issued thereunder, except in respect of matters specified below: 

jSr.
N 

o. 

1. 

Compliance Require­
ment (Regulations( 
circulars( guidelines 
including specific 
clause) 

The listed entity shall 
give prior intimation to 
the stock exchange of at 
least two working days 
in advance, excluding 
the date of the intimation 
and the date of the 
meeting of the board of 
directors, about the 
Board meeting in which 
any of the following 
proposals is to be 
considered: 
( c) financial results viz.
quarterly or annual, as
the case may be

Regu­
lation/ 
Circular 
No. 

Regulati 
on 
50(1 )(c) 
of SEBI 
(LODR) 
Regulati 
ons, 
2015 

Deviations Action Taken by 
the listed entity, 
if any 

in I The company Delay 
furnishing 
intimation 
about Board 
Meeting (For 
Quarter 
ended 30 
September, 
2022) as 
required 
under 
Regulation 
50(1) of the 
SEBI 
(LODR) 
Regulations, 
2015. 

had filed a waiver 
application dated 
December 22, 
2022 before BSE 
Limited for 
waiving the Fine 
levied on the 
company. 

Type of Action 
(Advisory I
Clarification( 
FinefShow Cause 
Noticef Warning, etc.) 

BSE Limited had levied 
a fine of Rs. 5,900/- on 
the company due to the 
delayed compliance 
made by the company 
vide their email dated 
14th December, 2022. 
Further, BSE has 
waived the fine payable 
vide their email dated 
20111 February, 2023. 

'b 

Details of 
Violation 

Delay in 
furnishing 
intimation 
about Board 
Meeting (For 
Quarter 
ended 30 
September, 
2022) as 
required 
under 
Regulation 
50(1) of the 
SEBI 
(LODR) 
Regulations, 
2015. 

Fine 
Amount 

Rs. 
5,900/-

Obser­
vations( 
Remarks of 
the 
Practicing 
Company 
Secretary 

The company 
had filed a 
waiver 
application 
dated 
December 22, 
2022 for 
waiving the 
Fine levied of 
Rs. 5,900/-, 
before BSE 
Limited and 
BSE has 
waived the 
fine payable 
vide their 
email dated 
20th 
February, 
2023 

Management Re­
sponse 

The Company had made 
the intimation to the BSE 
on November 03, 2022, 
that the Board meeting 
will be held on November 
11, 2022, to consider 
and approve the 
Unaudited financial 
results along with limited 
review report for the 
quarter ended 
September 30, 2022. 
Further due to 
unforeseen 
circumstances the 
company was required to 
reschedule the meeting 
to November 14, 2022, 
and the Company has 
duly intimated on 
November 10, 2022, 
about the change of the 
Board meeting to 
November 14, 2022. 
Thereby, the second 
intimation is only in 
continuation of the initial 
intimation to the BSE 
made on November 03, 
2022. Since, the 
Company has made 
sufficient intimation for 

��
he Board meeting and I � the reschedu

. 
led meeting

W&Y-?r<.1-_, ate to _tb_e BSE the

Remarks 

BSE has 
waived the 
fine levied 
on the 
company 
vide its 
email 
dated 20th 

February, 
2023. 



2. 

3. 

The listed entity shall 
submit to the stock 
exchange and the 
debenture trustee and 
publish on its website­
(a) a copy of the annual 
report sent to the 
shareholders along with 
the notice of the annual 
general meeting, not 
later than the date of 
commencement of 
dispatch to its 
shareholders; and 
(b) in the event of any
changes to the annual
report, the revised copy 
along with the details
and explanation for the
changes, not later than
48 hours after the
annual general
meeting.]
The listed entity shall
disclose to the stock
exchange in quarterly,
half-yearly, year-to-date
and annual financial
statements, as
applicable, the extent
and nature of security
created and maintained
with respect to its
secured listed non-
convertible debt
securities

Regulati 
on 53(2) 
of SEBI 
(LODR) 
Regulati 
ons, 
2015 

Regulati 
on 54(2) 
of SEBI 
(LODR) 
Regulati 
ens. 
2015 

Non­
submission 
of annual 
report within 
the period 
prescribed 
under this 
regulation for 
Financial 
Year 
2022-23. 

Non­
disclosure of 
extent and 
nature of 
security 
created and 
maintained 
with respect 
to secured 
listed NCDs 
in the 
financial 
statements 
for Quarter 
ended 30th

June, 2022. 

The company 
has paid the fine 
of Rs. 49,560/­
levied on the 
company on 04th 

November, 2022. 

The company 
has paid a fine of 
Rs. 34,220/- on 
15th September, 
2022 towards 
Non-disclosure of 
extent and nature 
of security 
created and 
maintained with 
respect to 
secured listed 
NCDs in the 
financial 
statements under 
Regulation 54(2). 
Further, the 
company has 

BSE Limited had levied 
a fine of Rs. 49,560/­
on the company due to 
the delayed 
compliance made by 
the company vide their 
email dated 31 October 
2022. 

BSE Limited had levied 
a fine of Rs. 2, 15,940/­
on the company vide 
their email dated 14 
September, 2022 and 
15 February, 2023. 

q 

Non­
submission 
of annual 
report within 
the period 
prescribed 
under 
Regulation 
53(2) of 
SEBI 
(LODR) 
Regulations, 
2015. 

Non­
disclosure of 
extent and 
nature of 
security 
created and 
maintained 
with respect 
to secured 
listed NCDs 
in the 
financial 
statements 
for Quarter 
ended 30th 

June, 2022. 

Rs. 
49,560/-

Rs. 
2,15,940/-

The company 
has paid the 
fine of Rs. 
49,560/­
levied on the 
company on 
Q41h

November, 
2022. 

The company 
has paid a fine 
of Rs. 
34,220/- on 
15th 
September, 
2022 Further, 
the company 
has paid the 
balance 
amount of fine 
of Rs. 
1,81,720 on 
15th 
February, 
2023. 

company has not 
violated the regulation 
50(1) of 
SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015. 

The company has paid 
the fine of Rs. 49,560/­
levied on the company 
on 04th November, 2022. 

The company has paid a 
fine of Rs. 34,220/- on 
15th September, 2022 
Further, the company 
has paid the balance 
amount of fine of Rs. 
1,81,720 on 15th 
February, 2023. 

�� 
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4. The listed entity shall
submit a certificate to 
the stock exchange 
within one working day 
of the interest or 
dividend or principal 
becoming due regarding 
status of payment in 
case of non-convertible 
securities 

Regulati 
on 57(1) 
of SEBI 
(LODR) 
Regulati 
ons, 
2015 

Non­
disclosure of 
information 
related to 
payment 
obligations in 
relation to 
the below 
mentioned 
ISINs­
lNE682V070 
28, 
INE682V070 
28, 
INE682V070 
10, 
INE682V070 
69, 
INE682V070 
44, 
INE682V070 
36, 
INE682V070 
77. 

paid the balance 
amount of fine of 
Rs. 1,81,720 on 
15th February, 
2023. 

The company 
had filed a waiver 
application dated 
September 28, 
2022 before BSE 
Limited for 
waiving the Fine 
levied on the 
company. 

BSE Limited had levied 
a fine of Rs. 
29,98,380/- on the 
company vide their 
email dated 28 
September, 2022, due 
to Non-disclosure of 
information related to 
payment obligations 
under Regulation 57(1) 
of SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015. 
Further, BSE has 
waived the fine payable 
vide their email dated 
1?1h February, 2023. 

lO 

Non­
disclosure of 
information 
related to 
payment 
obligations 
under 
Regulation 
57(1) of 
SEBI 
(LODR) 
Regulations, 
2015. 

Rs. 
29,98,380 
I-

The company 
had filed a 
waiver 
application 
dated 
September 
28, 2022 for 
waiving the 
Fine levied of 
Rs. 
29,98,380/-
before BSE 
Limited and 
BSE has 
waived the 
fine payable 
vide their 
email dated 
17th 
February, 
2023 

The Face value of the 
ISINs (INE682V07010, 
INE682V07028, 
INE682V07036, 
INE682V07044, 
INE682V07051, 
INE682V07069 and 
INE682V07077) are Rs. 
10,00,000 per debenture 
and the redemption 
amount for series A to G 
is 
Rs. 11,92,50,98,500 
(including the interest 
accrued). 
In addition to the above 
and pursuant to 
Regulation 57(1) of the 
SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015, the 
company stated that 
neither the interest nor 
the principal have been 
become due in any of 
the aforementioned 
ISINs. It is further stated 
that the redemption of all 
the 
above referred 
debentures are falling on 
May 28, 2023 (Maturity 
date). As per clause 4 of 
Schedule I - Financial 
terms and Conditions of 
the Debenture Trust 
deed (DTD) dated 
September 14, 2017, 
entered into with the 

.,,,:;:;;��Q,ebenture trustee, the 
��ORA ft on shall accrue and

0. _ a able on maturit 
((z�.• o. 

1CZ:,. 

�,¢,, � 
� 

BSE has 
waived the 
fine 
payable 
vide their 
email 
dated 171h 

February, 
2023. 



5. The listed entity shall
within five working days
prior to the beginning of
the quarter provide
details for all the non­
convertible securities for
which interesU dividend/
principal obligations
shall be payable during
the quarter

Regulati 
on 57(4) 
of SEBI 
(LODR) 
Regulati 
ons, 
2015 

Non­
submission 
of details of 
payable 
interesUdivid 
end/principal 
obligations 
during the 
quarter in 
relation to 
the below 
mentioned 
ISINs 

INE682V070 
69,INE682V 
07069, 
INE682V070 
10, 
INE682V070 
28, 
INE682V070 
44, 
INE682V070 
51, 
INE682V070 
36 

The company 
had filed a waiver 
application dated 
October 6, 2022 
before BSE 
limited for 
waiving the Fine 
levied on the 
company. 

BSE limited had levied 
a fine of Rs. 7,000/- on 
the company due to the 
Non-submission of 
details of payable 
interesUdividend/princi 
pal obligations during 
the quarter vide their 
email dated 27 
September, 2022. 
Further, BSE has 
waived the fine payable 
vide their email dated 
17 February, 2023. 

11 

Non­
submission 
of details of 
payable 
interesUdivid 
end/principal 
obligations 
during the 
quarter. 

Rs. 
7,000/-

The company 
had filed a 
waiver 
application 
dated October 
6, 2022 for 
waiving the 
Fine levied of 
Rs. 7,000/-, 
before BSE 
limited and 
BSE has 
waived the 
fine payable 
vide their 
email dated 
17 February, 
2023. 

and hence the Company 
is not required to make 
intimation under 
Regulation 57(1} of SEBI 
(LODR) Regulations. 
2015. 

The company stated that 
neither the interest nor 
the principal have been 
become due in 
respect of any of the 
given ISINs. The 
company further stated 
that the 
redemption of all the 
above referred 
debentures are falling 
due only on May 28, 
2023 (Maturity date). As 
per clause 4 of Schedule 
I - Financial terms and 
Conditions of the 
Debenture Trust deed 
(OTO) dated September 
14, 2017, entered into 
with the debenture 
trustee, the coupon shall 
accrue and will be 
payable on maturity. In 
view of the above, since 
no interest/ dividend/ 
principal obligations 
became payable 
during the quarter ended 
June 2022, requirement 
of furnishing the details 
regarding the 
interest/dividend/ 
principal ob.ligations was 
not applicable during the 

BSE has 
waived the 
fine 
payable 
vide their 
email 
dated 17 
February, 
2023. 

quarter. 
���U"t{D� 
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6. 

7.

The listed entity shall 
give notice in advance of 
at least seven working 
days (excluding the date 
of intimation and the 
record date) to the 
recognised stock 
exchange(s) of the 
record date or of as 
many days as the stock 
exchange(s) may agree 
to or require specifying 
the purpose of the 
record date. 

------ -� 

The quorum for audit 
committee meeting shall 
either be two members 
or one third of the 
members of the audit 
committee, whichever is 
greater, with at least two 
independent directors. 

Regulati 
on 60(2) 
of SEBI 
(LODR) 
Regulati 
ons, 
2015 

Regulati 
on 
18(2)(b) 
of SEBI 
(LODR) 
Regulati 
ons, 
2015 

Delay in 
submission 
of the notice 
of Record 
Date 

The Audit 
Committee 
meeting held 
by the 
company on 
30'h May, 
2022, was 
attended by 
two directors 
out of which 
only one 
Independent 
Director was 
present. 

The company 
has paid the fine 
of Rs. 10,000/­
levied on the 
company on 30th 

September, 
2022. 

BSE limited had levied 
a fine of Rs. 10,000/­
on the company vide 
their email dated 28th 

September, 2022. 

l 2-

Delay in 
submission 
of the notice 
of Record 
Date 

The Audit 
Committee 
meeting held 
by the 
company on 
30th May, 
2022, was 
attended by 
two directors 
out of which 
only one 
Independent 
Director was 
present. 

Rs_ 
10,000/-

The company 
has paid the 
fine of Rs. 
10,000/­
levied on the 
company on 
30th

September, 
2022. 

As per the 
regulation 15 
of the SEBI 
(LODR) 
Regulations, 
2015, 
Regulation 16 
to Regulation 
27 have been 
made 
applicable to 
the company 
on a 'comply 
or explain' 
basis until 
March 31, 
2023. 
Accordingly, 
the Company 
needs to 
explain the 
reasons for 
not duly 
convening the 
Audit 
Committee 
meeting held 
on 30th May, 
2022. 

The company has paid 
the fine of Rs. 10,000/­
levied on the company 
on 30th September, 
2022. 

As per the regulation 15 
of the SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015. 
Regulation 16 to 
Regulation 27 have been 
made applicable to the 
company on a 'comply or 
explain' basis until March 
31, 2023. 

Hence the company will 
explain the reasons for 
the Audit Committee 
meeting held with the 
presence of One 
Independent Director on 
30th May, 2022. 

The 
Company 
need to 
explain 

the same, 
in the 

quarterly 
complianc 
e report 

on 
Corporate 
Governan 

ce. 

��,{_c1�. 
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8. 

9. 

The listed entity shall 
within seven working 
days from the end of the 
quarter provide: 
(a) a certificate 
confirming the payment 
of interest/ dividend 
/principal obligations for 
non-convertible 
securities which were 
due in that quarter;and 
(b) the details of all
unpaid interest/ 
dividend/ principal 
obligations in relation to 
non-convertible 
securities at the end of 
the quarter. 

The listed entity shall 
give prior intimation to 
the stock exchange of at 
least two working days 
in advance, excluding 
the date of the intimation 
and the date of the 
meeting of the board of 
directors, about the 
Board meeting in which 
any of the following 
proposals is to be 
considered -
(a) an alteration in the
form or nature of non­
convertible securities
that are listed on the
stock exchange or in the
rights or privileges of the
holders thereof;

(b) an alteration in the
date of the interest/
dividend/ redemption 
payment of non-
convertible securities; 

Regulati 
on 57(5) 
of SEBI 
{LODR) 
Regulati 
ons, 
2015 

Regulati 
on 50(1) 
of SEBI 
(LODR) 
Regulati 
ons, 
2015 

The 
company 
has 
intimated the 
stock 
exchange on 
04 May, 
2022 for the 
quarter 
ended 3151 

March, 2022 
{i.e. on 04 
May, 2022) 
and has not 
submitted 
the 
intimation for 
the Quarter 
ended 30th 

June, 2022. 
The 
company 
could not 
provide for 
adequate 
notice to the 
BSE for 
holding 
Board 
meetings on 
January 10, 
2022, March 
18, 2022, 
and March 
24, 2022, 
relating to 
items of 
restructuring 
and fresh 
borrowing of 
Non­
Convertible 
Debentures 
(NCD) 

18 

The 
company 
has 
intimated the 
stock 
exchange at 
a delay for 
the quarter 
ended 31 51 

March, 2022 
and has not 
submitted 
the 
intimation for 
the Quarter 
ended 3Qlh 
June, 2022. 

The 
company 
could not 
provide for 
adequate 
notice to the 
BSE for 
holding 
Board 
meetings on 
January 10, 
2022, March 
18, 2022, 
and March 
24, 2022, 

relating to 
items of 
restructuring 
and fresh 
borrowing of 
Non­
Convertible 
Debentures 
(NCD) 

Interest/ 
/principal 
obligations 
due for the 
quarter ended 
301h June 
2022, was not 
intimated by 
the company. 

The company 
could not 
provide for 
adequate 
notice to the 
BSE for 
holding Board 
meetings on 
January 10, 
2022, March 
18, 2022, and 
March 24, 
2022, relating 
to items of 
restructuring 
and fresh 
borrowing of 
Non­
Convertible 
Debentures 
(NCD) 

The Company has 
delayed in submission of 
the intimation for the 
quarter ended 31 51 

March, 2022. 

Further, there was no 
interest or principal 
amount due for the 
quarter ended June 
2022, Hence the 
company has not 
submitted the intimation 
with BSE. 

The Board of directors of 
the company have been 
apprised of the same at 
its Board Meeting. 

. -..:_ -=---

The 
Company 
has been 
advised to 
file a NIL 
Return in 
case there 
are no 
interest or 
Principal 
amount 
due for the 
respective 
quarter. 

The 
Company 
has been 

advised to 
ensure 

complianc 
e of the 

regulation 
s 

) 



(c) financial results viz.
quarterly or annual, as
the case may be;
(d) fund raising by way
of issuance of non­
convertible securities; or
(e) any matter affecting
the rights or interests of
holders of non­
convertible securities.

l�



Annexure - II 

(b) The listed entity has taken the following actions to comply with the observations made in previous reports:

Sr. No. 

1. 

2. 

Compliance 
Requirement 
(Regulations/ 
circulars/ guide­
lines including 
specific clause) 

The listed entity 
shall give prior 
intimation to the 
stock exchange of 
at least two 
working days in 
advance as per 
Regulation 50(1) 
(d) of SEBI
(LODR)
Regulations, 2015.

Holding of meeting 
of one 
Stakeholders 
Relationship 
Committee 
meeting at least 
once in a" year as 
per Regulation 20 
of SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015. 

Regulation/ 
Circular No. 

Regulation 
50(1) (d) of 
SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 
2015 

Regulation 20 
of SEBI 
(LODR) 
Regulations, 
2015. 

Deviations 

The listed entity 
intimated the stock 
exchange on 
December 28, 2021 
regarding the 
meeting to be held on 
December 29, 2021 
held to consider items 
as prescribed in 
Regulation 50(1) (d) 
of SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015. 

The said regulation is 
on a comply or 
explain basis until 
March 31, 2023. 
The listed entity has 
not explained the 
reason for · not 
convening the 
meeting as per the 
provisions of the said 
Regulations. 

Action 
Taken by 

Type of 
Action 
(Advisory/ 
Clarification/ 
Fine/Show 
Cause 
Notice/ 
Warning, 
etc.) 

Details of 
Violation 

For the Financial year 2021-22: 
, , The listed entity 

i, 

intimated the 
stock exchange 
on December 28, 
2021 regarding 
the meeting to be 
held on 
December 29, 
2021 held to 
consider items as 
prescribed in 
Regulation 50(1) 
(d) of SEBI 
(LODR) 
Regulations, 
2015. 

The said 
regulation is on a 
comply or explain 
basis until March 
31, 2023. 
The listed entity 
has not explained 
the reason for not 
convening the 
meeting as per 
the provisions of 
the said 
Regulations. 

Fine I Observations/ 
Amount Remarks of the 

Practicing Company 
Secretary 

The Board meeting was 
duly convened at a 
shorter notice after 
obtaining necessary 
approvals from the 
directors of the listed 
entity. 

The committee has 
been constituted but 
the meeting of the 
committee has not 
been held during the 
reporting period. 

As per the explanations 
provided by the listed 
entity, they have taken 
steps to convene the 
meeting of the said 
committee in Quarter 

Manage­
ment Re­
sponse 

The listed 
Entity has 
explained it 
in Annual 
Report for 
the financial 
year ended 
March 31, 
2022. 

As per the 
explanations 
provided by 
the listed 
entity, they 
are taking 
steps to 
convene the 
meeting of 
the said 
committee in 
Quarter one 
of the 
financial 

Remarks 

The listed 
Entity has 
explained it 
in Annual 
Report for 
the financial 
year ended 
March 31, 
2022. 

As per the 
explanations 
provided by 
the listed 
entity, they 
are taking 
steps to 
convene the 
meeting of 
the said 
committee in 
Quarter one 
of the 

� I"\ 
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lb 

one of the financial year 

I 
year 2022-

I
financial year 

2022-23. 23. 2022-23.

During the 
financial year 
2022-23, 
company 
has held 
Stakeholders 
Relationship 
Committee 
meeting on 
301h May, 
2022. 



Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications (for audit report with modified 
opinion) submitted along-with Annual Standalone Audited Financial Results 

Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023 
[Regulation 33 / 52 of the SEBI (LODR) (Amendment) Regulations, 2016] 

(Rupees in Thousands) 

I Sl. 
No.   Particulars 

Audited Figures 
(As reported 

before adjusting 
for qualifications) 

Adjusted Figures 
(Audited figures after 

adjusting for 
qualifications) 

1. Turnover / Total income 8,840.16 8,840.16 

2. Total Expenditure 33,33,931.46 33,33,931.46 

3. Net Profit/(Loss) (33,25,091.30) (33,25,091.30) 

4. Earnings Per Share (1,059.91) (1,059.91) 

5. Total Assets 2,23,37,376.42 2,23,37,376.42 

6. Total Liabilities 2,25,51,025.97 2,25,51,025.97 

7. Net Worth (2,13,649.55) (2,13,649.55) 

8. 
Any other financial item(s) (as felt appropriate 
by the management) NIL NIL 

 II Audit Qualification (each audit qualification separately): 

A. Details of Audit Qualification:

i. Consolidated CAR is lower than the regulatory minimum of 15% for Non-Operating Financial Holding
Company (NOFHC) as per the RBI guidelines.

ii. Shortfall of Net Owned Funds below the regulatory minimum of Rupees 200 lakhs as per Section 45-IA
of the RBI Act 1934 and Master Direction DNBR. PD.008/03.10.119/2016-17 dated September 1, 2016.

iii. Leverage ratio Negative of 105.52 times on a standalone basis which is above the regulatory threshold
of 1.25 times stipulated in the RBI guidelines.

B. Type of Audit Qualification: Qualified opinion.

C. Frequency of qualification:  Repetitive.

D. For Audit Qualification(s) where the impact is quantified by the auditor, Management's

Views:  Does not arise.

E. For Audit Qualification(s) where the impact is not quantified by the auditor:

(i) Management's estimation on the impact of audit qualification: Cannot be estimated.

(ii) If management is unable to estimate the impact, reasons for the same: The management cannot estimate
the impact for the following reasons.

a. The Company is a non-operating financial holding company and does not carry out any business
activity except making investments in the associate company.

b. Main purpose of creating this intermediate structure is to act as a conduit for investment in the target
company.

c. The performance of this company is entirely dependent on the target company in which it holds the
investments.

d. In the recent years, the performance of the target company was impacted by unforeseen events that
were external to it and the target company had no control over them.

e. In order to ensure that the target company meets its regulatory requirements, the company was
required to raise debt by way of issuing non-convertible debentures and invest in the target company
to keep it afloat.

(iii) Raising of debt at the company level to meet the capital requirement of the target company and losses
incurred in the past by the target company for the reasons beyond its control have impacted CAR and
Net owned Funds at consolidated level and the leverage ratio on a standalone basis.



 
 

Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications (for audit report with modified opinion) 
submitted along-with Annual Audited Financial Results 

 

 

(iv) Auditors' Comments on (i) or (ii) above: 
The qualification matters stated in the audit report were pertaining to non-compliances with the 
certain conditions specified in the RBI guidelines and notifications (regulations) mentioned in our audit 
report. The monetary implications of such non-compliances are not mentioned in the relevant 
regulations. Accordingly, consequential impact of such non-compliance on the financial results is 
presently unascertainable.  
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For Jana Holdings Limited For Jana Holdings Limited For Jana Holdings Limited 

Sd/- 
  

Sd/- Sd/- 

Rajamani Muthuchamy 
CEO and Managing Director                     
DIN:08080999 
 
Place: Bangalore 
Date: 20.05.2023 
 

Abraham Chacko 
Audit Committee Chairman 
DIN:06676990 
 
Place: Cochin 
Date:  20.05.2023 

Gopalakrishnan S 
Chief Financial Officer 
ICAI Membership No: 021783 
 
Place: Bangalore 
Date:  22.05.2023 
 

 
For MURALI & VENKAT 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 002162S 

Sd/- 

K. Venkatesh 

Partner 

Membership No: 028348 

  Place: Bangalore 

  Date: 22.05.2023 

 
 

 



Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications (for audit report with modified opinion) 
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Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023  

[Regulation 33 / 52 of the SEBI (LODR) (Amendment) Regulations, 2016] 
(Rupees in Thousands) 

 
I Sl. 

No.   Particulars 

Audited Figures 
(as reported 

before adjusting 
for qualifications) 

Adjusted Figures 
(audited figures after 

adjusting for 
qualifications) 

1. Turnover / Total income 8,840.16 8,840.16 
 2. Total Expenditure  34,04,251.42   34,04,251.42  
 3. Net Profit/(Loss)  (33,95,411.26)  (33,95,411.26) 
 4. Earnings Per Share (1,082.33) (1,082.33) 
 5. Total Assets  23,27,332.16   23,27,332.16  
 6. Total Liabilities 2,25,51,025.97 2,25,51,025.97 
 7. Net Worth (2,02,23,693.81)  (2,02,23,693.81)  
  

8. 
  Any other financial item(s) (as felt appropriate  
  by the management) Nil Nil 

 
     II Audit Qualification (each audit qualification separately): 

A. Details of Audit Qualification:  

i. Consolidated CAR is lower than the regulatory minimum of 15% for Non-Operating Financial Holding 
Company (NOFHC) as per the RBI guidelines.  

ii. Shortfall of Net Owned Funds below the regulatory minimum of Rupees 200 lakhs as per Section 45-
IA of the RBI Act 1934 and Master Direction DNBR. PD.008/03.10.119/2016-17 dated September 1, 
2016.  

iii. Leverage ratio Negative of 105.52 times on a standalone basis which is above the regulatory 
threshold of 1.25 times stipulated in the RBI guidelines. 

B. Type of Audit Qualification: Qualified opinion. 

C. Frequency of qualification:  Repetitive. 

D.    For Audit Qualification(s) where the impact is quantified by the auditor, Management's 

  Views:  Does not arise. 

E. For Audit Qualification(s) where the impact is not quantified by the auditor: 

(i) Management's estimation on the impact of audit qualification: Cannot be estimated. 
(ii) If management is unable to estimate the impact, reasons for the same: The management cannot 

estimate the impact for the following reasons.  
a.  The Company is a non-operating financial holding company and does not carry out any business 

activity except making investments in the associate company.  

b. Main purpose of creating this intermediate structure is to act as a conduit for investment in the 
target company.  

c. The performance of this company is entirely dependent on the target company in which it holds 
the investments.  

d. In the recent years, the performance of the target company was impacted by unforeseen events 
that were external to it and the target company had no control over them.  

e. In order to ensure that the target company meets its regulatory requirements, the company was 
required to raise debt by way of issuing non-convertible debentures and invest in the target 
company to keep it afloat.  

(iii) Raising of debt at the company level to meet the capital requirement of the target company and 
losses incurred in the recent past by the target company for the reasons beyond its control have 
impacted CAR and Net owned Funds at consolidated level and the leverage ratio on a stand-alone 
basis. 



Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications (for audit report with modified opinion) 
submitted along-with Annual Audited Consolidated Financial Results 

 
(iv) Auditors' Comments on (i) or (ii) above: 
 

The qualification matters stated in the audit report were pertaining to non-compliances with the 
certain conditions specified in the RBI guidelines and notifications (regulations) mentioned in our 
audit report. The monetary implications of such non compliances are not mentioned in the relevant 
regulations. Accordingly, consequential impact of such non-compliance on the financial results is 
presently unascertainable.  

 
II 

 
For Jana Holdings Limited For Jana Holdings Limited For Jana Holdings Limited 

Sd/- 
  
Sd/- Sd/- 

Rajamani Muthuchamy 
CEO and Managing Director                     
DIN:08080999 
 
Place: Bangalore 
Date: 28.06.2023 
 

Gopalakrishnan S 
Chief Financial Officer 
ICAI Membership No: 021783 
 
Place: Bangalore 
Date:  28.06.2023 
 

Abraham Chacko 
Audit Committee Chairman 
DIN:06676990 
 
Place: Cochin 
Date:  28.06.2023 

 
For MURALI & VENKAT 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 002162S 

Sd/- 

K. Venkatesh 
Partner 
Membership No: 028348 

 
  Place: Bangalore 
  Date: 28.06.2023 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Members of Jana Holdings Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Qualified Opinion 

We have audited the Standalone Financial Statements of Jana Holdings Limited ('The 
Company') which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023, and the Statement of Profit 
and Loss, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then 
ended, and notes to the Standalone Financial Statements, including a summary of significant 
accoW1ting policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us,except for the effects of the matter deso·ibed in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of 
our report, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by 
the Companies Act, 2013 ('The Act') in the manner so required and give a true and fair view 
in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act 
read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 
31 March 2023, and its loss, changes in ·equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that 
date. 

Basis for Qualified Opinion 

(i) The Company is a Non-Operating Financial Holding Company ('NOFHC') of J,ma
Small Finance Bank Limited ('JSFB' or 'the Bank', An Associate Company herein after
called as "TI1e Associate"). As per RBI guidelines, the Company shall maintain
minimum Capital Adequacy Ratio ('CAR') at a consolidated level based on the
prudential guidelines on Capital Adequacy and Market Discipline New Capital
Adequacy Framework (NCAF) issued under Basel II framework and Guidelines on
Implementation of Basel III CapitalRegulations of India, when implemented.

In Our Opinion, for the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company is not meeting with
the regulatory minimum.CAR on a consolidated basis. Capital adequacy computed on a
consolidated basis as on 31 Marci). 2023, is in negative data of 4.17% (minus 4.17%),
which is below the regulatory minimum of 15%. TI1e consequential impact of such
non-compliances on the Standalone Financial Statements is presently
unascertainable. (Refer Note 34 to the Audited Standalone Financial Statements).

Our Offices also at 
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(ii) The terms and conditions of the Certificate of registration issued to the Company by
the RBI vide letter no. N-02.00275 dated 27 January 2017, requires to comply with
prescribed Net Owned Fund requirement in accordance with Section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and RBI's Master Direction DNBR.
PD.008/03.10.119/2016-17 dated 1st September 2016. In Our Opinion, The Net
Owned Funds of the Company as on 31 March 2023, is in a Deficit of Rs.225,469.55
Lakhs, which is below the regulatory minimum of Rs. 200 Lakhs. The consequential
impact of such non-compliance on the Standalone Financial Statements is presently
unascertainable. (Refer note 35 to the audited Standalone Financial Statements).

(iii)As per RBI guidelines, the NOFHC may have a Leverage of up to 1.25 times, of it's
Paid up Equity Share Capital and Free Reserves. For the year ended 31 March 2023,
the Company had a Leverage Ratio of Negative of 105.52 times which is above the
regulatory threshold of 1.25 times as stated on a Standalone basis. In Our Opinion the
consequential impact of such non-compliances on the Standalone Financial
Statements is presently unascertainable. (Refer Note 36 to the Audited Standalone
Financial Statements).

These matters were also qualified in our report on the Standalone Financial Statements for 
the year ended 31st March 2023. 

We conducted our Audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified 
under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further 
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are independent of tl1e Company in accordance with 
tl1e Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI') with the 
ethical requirements fuat are relevant to our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our qualified opinion. 

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern 

We draw attention to Note 37 in the Standalone Financial Statements, which indicates that 
the Company incurred a net loss of INR 332.51 crores during the year ended 31 March 2023 
and has accumulated losses amounting to INR 1476.50 crores, as of that date, which is 
completely eroded its Net Worth and resulted in negative. Further the Company has fixed 
term borrowings approaching maturity with prospects of repayment currently being 
evaluated by the management. Furfuer, the Company is in breach of certain regulatory 
financial parameters as of 31 March 2023 as stated here in above, in the Basis of Qualified 
Opinion section. These conditions indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast 
significant doubt on Company's ability to continue as a going concern. However, the 
Company during the year raised additional funds to repay the matured debentures and the 
balance funds are invested in the equity shares of the Associate. Accordingly, the Standalone 
Financial Statements have been prepared under going concern assumption. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

































































JANA HOLDINGS LIMITED 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 

9 

(Rs. In thousands) 

Payables 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

(I) Trade payables

(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

Total Trade payables

Trade Payables Ageing Schedule (Rs. In thousands) 

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 
Total 

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years 

(!) MSME - - . - -

(ii) Others - - - . .

(iii) Disputed Dues MSME . . . - . 

(iii) Disputed Dues Others - . - . -

(II) Other payables 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

Total Other payables

Based on the information available with the NBFC, there are no outstanding dues and payments made to any supplier of goods 

and services beyond the specified period under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 [MSMED Act). 

There is no interest payable or paid to any suppliers under the said Act. 































JANA HOLDINGS LIMITED 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 

(Amount in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated) 

28 Capital management 

The adequacy of the Company's capital Is monitored using, among other measures, the regulations issued by RBI. The primary objectives of the Company's capital management are to ensure that the Company complies 
with externally imposed capital requirements and maintains requisit credit ratings. The funding requirements are met through equity and non convertible debentures. The Company manages its capital structure and 

makes adjustments to it according to changes in economic conditions a.nd the risk characteristics of its activities. No changes have been made to the objectives, policies and processes from the previous years. 
However, they are under constant review by the Board. 
The Company is a NOFHC of Jana Small Finance Bank Limited ('JSFB' or 'the Bank') and has no operation of its own. As per the terms and conditions of the license issued to the Bank to commence small finance bank 
business under Section 22 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 vide letter OBR.NBD.(SFB·JFS) No. 12881/16.13216/2016•17 dated 28 April 2017 ('Licensing letter'), the Company is required to comply with the 
provisions of paragraph 2(H)(li)\ of the Guidelines for Licensing Of New Banks in the Private Sector dated 22 February 2013 which refers to Capital Adequacy ('CAR') compliance on a consolidated basis by the NOFHC 
as per RBI guidelines. 

(i) Gearing Ratio 
Partlculars

Equity Share Capital

Other Equity

Total equity 

Borrowings other than convertible preference shares 

Le-.s; cash and cash equivalents 

Total debt 

Overall financing 

Gearing ratio 

(i) 

(Ii) 

(iii) • (i) ... (ii) 

(ii)/ (iii) 

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the financial year 2022·2023. 

(ii) Consolidated CAR 

Particulars 

Common Equity Tier1 (CIT1 ) capital 

Other Tier 2 capital Instruments 

Total Capital 

Risk weighted assets 

err, capital ratio 

Total capital ratio 

29 Change In liabilities arising from financing activities 

Particulars 

Debt securities 

Total liabilities from financing activities 

Particulars 

Debt securities 

Total liabilities from financing activities 

01-Apr-22

1,89, 95,919.98 

1,89, 95,919.98 

01-Apr-21

1,55, 16,034.36

1,55, 16,034.36 

Cash flows Others* 

2,65,909.12 32,83,517.82 

2,65,909.12 32,83,517.82 

Cash flows 

7,56,074.52 

7,56,074.52 

Others* 

27,23,811 .09 

27,23,811.09 

·others Includes the effect of accrued but not paid interest on debt securities, amortisation of processing f� etc. 

orting 

Changes in fair 
values 

Changes in fair 
values 

31-Mar-23

31,371.36

-2,45,020. 91

·2, 13,649.55

2,25,45,346. 92 

-1, 164.57

2,25,44, 182.35 

2,23,30,532.79 

1.01 

31-Mar-23

(54,72, 154.27) 

(54,72, 154.27) 

13, 11,23, 578.27 

·4.17%

-4.17%

Exchange 
difference 

Exchange 
difference 

31-Mar-23

2,25,45,346. 93 

2,25,45,346. 93 

31-Mar-22 

1,89,95,919.98 

1,89,95,919.98 

'"L�==�IV., NOFHC and has classified this as its business segment and accordingly there are no separate reportable segments In accordance with Ind AS 108 "Operating Segment". 

31-Mar-22 

23,809.44 

23,37,633. 52 

23,61,442. 96 

1,89,95,919.98 

•17,610.67

1,89,78,309.31 

2,13,39,752.26 

0.89 

31-Mar-22

(76,49, 120.41) 

(76,49,120.41) 

9,61,24, 185.45 

-7.96% 

-7.96% 

*
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Members of Jana Holdings Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Qualified Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Jana Holdings 
Limited ('The Company'), its Associate M/s Jana Small Finance Bank limited, which comprise the 
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023, and the Consolidated Statement of Profit 
and Loss, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement 
of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 
(Herein after referred to as "the Consolidated Financial Statements") 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us,except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of 
our report,the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements give the information required by 
the Companies Act, 2013 ('The Act') in the manner so required and give a true and fair view 
in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act 
read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other 
accow1ting principles generally accepted in India, of their Consolidated state of affairs of the 
Company and its Associate as at 31 March 2023, and its Consolidated loss, Consolidated 
changes in equity and its Consolidated cashflows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Qualified Opinion 

(i) The Company is a Non-Operating Financial Ho!ding Company ('NOFHC') of Jana
Small Finance Bank Limited ('JSFB' or 'the Bank', An Associate Company herein after
called as "The Associate"). As per RBI guidelines, the Company shall maintain
minimum Capital Adequacy Ratio ('CAR') at a consolidated level based on the
prudential guidelines on Capitai Adequacy and Market Discipline New Capital
Adequacy Framework (NCAF) issued under Basel II framework and Guidelines on
Implementation of Basel m CapitalRegulations of India, when implemented.

In Our Opinion, for the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company is not meeting with
the regulatory minimumCAR on a consolidated basis. Capital adequacy computed on a
consolidated basis as on 31 March 2023, is in negative data of 4.17% (minus 4.17%),
which is below the regulatory minimum of 15%. The consequential impact of such
non-compliances on the Consolidated Financial Statements is presently
unascertainable. (Refer Note 33 to the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements).
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(ii) The terms and conditions of the Certificate of registration issued to the Company by
the RBI vide letter no. N-02.00275 dated 27 January 2017, requires to comply with
prescribed Net Owned Fund requirement in accordance with Section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and RBI's Master Direction DNBR.
PD.008/03.10.119/2016-17 dated 1st September 2016. In Our Opinion, The Net
Owned Funds of the Company as on 31 March 2023, is in a Deficit of Rs.225,469.55
Lakhs, which is below the regulatory minimum of Rs. 200 Lakhs. The consequential
impact of such non-compliance on the Consolidated Financial Statements is presently
unascertainable. (Refer note 34 to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements).

(iii) As per RBI guidelines, the NOFHC may have a Leverage of up to 1.25 times, of it's
Paid up Equity Share Capital and Free Reserves. For the year ended 31 March 2023,
the Company had a Leverage Ratio Negative of 1.11 times which is above the
regulatory threshold of 1.25 times as stated on a consolidated basis. In Our Opinion
the consequential impact of such non-compliances on the Consolidated Financial
Statements is presently unascertainable. (Refer Note 35 to the Audited Consolidated
Financial Statements).

These matters were also qualified in our report on the Standalone Financial Statements for 
the year ended 31st March 2023. 

We conducted our Audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified 
under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further 
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company and its Associate in 
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
('!CAI') with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the 
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion. 

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern 

We draw attention to Note 36 in the Consolidated Financial Statements, which indicates that 
the Company incurred a net loss of INR 339.54 crories during the year ended 31 March 2023 
and has accumulated losses amounting to INR 3453.66 crores, as of that date, which is

completely eroded its Net Worth and resulted in negative. Further the Company has fixed 
term borrowings approaching maturity with prospects of repayment currently being 
evaluated by the management. Further, the Company is in breach of certain regulatory 
financial parameters as of 31 March 2023 as stated here in above, in the Basis of Qualified 
Opinion section. These conditions indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast 
significant doubt on Company's ability to continue as a going concern. However, the 
Company during the year raised additional funds to repay the matured debentures and the 
balance funds are invested in the equity shares of the Associate. Accordingly, the 
Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared under going concern assumption. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 



Emphasis of Matter 

We draw attention to Note 32 & 36 to the Consolidated Financial Statements which describe 
the extent to which the COVID- 19 Pandemic will impact the Associate' s Consolidated 
Financial Statements. Consequently, the impact on the Carrying Value of Investment in the 
Associate in the books of the Company will depend on the future developments. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Re port 
Thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The Other 
information comprises the information included in the Director's Report, but does not 
include the Consolidated Financial Statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information 
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our responsibility is 
to read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, 
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated 
Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement 
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in 
this regard. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the current period. 
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 
separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the Basis for 
Qualified Opinion section we have determined the matters described below to be the key 
audit matters to be communicated in our report 



Impairment Assessment of Investment in Equity Shares in the Associate 

Refer Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statement with respect to the disclosures of 
Investment in the Associate. 

The Investment in the Associate is recorded under Equity Method and is tested for 
Impairment annually. On 31 March 2023, Investment in the Associate amounts to INR 
2323.26 crores (Previous year 31 March 2022: 13,99.55 crores) against which Reversal of 
Impairment Loss for the Year Rs Nil (Impairment Loss/ Reversal of lmpairment Loss for the 
Last Year Rs. 37.28 crores). The net provision of Impairment is provided for Rs. 256.83 crores 
as at 31 March 2023 (Previous year 31 March 2022: Rs. 256.83 crores). 

The annual Impairment testing of value of Investment in the Associate is considered to be a 
key audit matter due to the materiality of Investment for the Company and the fact that 
process and methodology for assessing and determining the recoverable amount of 
Investment are based on certain assumptions, that by their nature imply the use of the 
management's judgment and prudence, in particular with reference to identification of 
Impairment. 

Our audit procedures in respect of this area include but are not limited to: 
i. The verification of the design, implementation and operating effectiveness of key

intern.al controls over approval, recording and monitoring of Impairment in
Investments.

ii. The Review of the management's Impairment assessment and assessed the
reasonableness of judgements and assumptions used in such Impairment assessment.

iii. The Assessment of the accuracy of the Impairment loss and evaluated the adequacy
of the disclosures in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated 
Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the with respect to the preparation of 
these Consolidated Financial Statemen� that give a true and fair view of the consolidated 
financial position, consolidated financial performance, consolidated changes in equity and 
consolidated cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 
of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and 
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated 
financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 



In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for 
assessing the Company and of its Associates, ability to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis 
of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to 
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company and its Associate 
financial reporting process of the Company and of its Associate. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial 
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 
and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these Consolidated Financial Statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of
the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company
has internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements in
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.



• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exits, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report t:o the
related disclosures in the Consolidated Financial Statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Financial
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Financial
Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of
the entity and its Associate to express an opinion on the Consolidated Financial
Statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
Audit of the Financial Statements of such entities included in the Consolidated
Financial Statements of which we are the Independent Auditors.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Company and such other 
entities included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of which we are Independent 
Auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and ti.ming of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied 
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them 
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
of the current period and are therefore, the key audit matters. We describe these matters in 
our auditor's report. We describe these matters in our auditor's report wtless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report 
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outw-eigh 
the public interest benefits of such communication. 



Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by section143(3) of the Act, We report, to the extent applicable, that:

a. We have sought and, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the
Basis for Qualified Opinion above, obtained all the information and explanations

which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of

our audit of the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements.

b. Except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
section above, in our Opinion, proper Books of Account as required by Law

relating to preparation of the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements.

c. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, The Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss,

the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement

of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in Agreement with the relevant Books
of Account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated

Financial Statements.

d. Except for the effects of the matter described in Basis for Qualified Opinion section

above, in our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements comply
with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with

Rule 7 Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e. The matter described in the Basis of Qualified Opinion and Material Uncertainty

Related to Going Concern section of our report, in our Opinion, may have an

ad verse effect on the functioning of the Company.

f. On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors of the

Company as on 31st March, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the

Company and the Reports of . the Statutory Auditors of its Associate Company,

none of the Directors of the Company, its Associate Company is disqualified as on

31st March, 2023 from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 (2) of
the Act.

g. The Qualification relating to the maintenance of Accounts and other matters

connected therewith are as stated in the Basis for Qualified Opinion para_graph
above.

h. With respect to the adequacy of Internal Financial Controls with reference to
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness
of such Controls, refer to our separate Report in II Annexure-A11

• 



i. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and auditor's) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

i. The Consolidated Financial Statements disclose the impact of pending
litigations on the Consolidated Financial position of the Company and its
Associate. Refer Note 15(e) to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

ii. The Company and its Associate did not have any material foreseeable losses

on long-term contracts including Derivative Contracts.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company and its Associate Company
incorporated in India.

iv. (a) The management has represented to us that to the best of their knowledge

and belief that no funds (which are material either individually or in
aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
("Intermediaries"), with 'the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. Based
on reasonable audit procedures adopted by us, nothing has come to our
notice that such representation contains any material misstatement.

(b) The management has represented to us that to the best of their knowledge

and belief that no funds (which are material either individually or in

aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
("Ultimate Beneficiaries")· or provide any guarantee, security or the like on

behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on reasonable audit procedures adopted by us, nothing has come to
our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub­
clause (i) and (ii) of Rule ll(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contains
any material misstatement.



v. The Company has not declared any dividend during the Year.

vi. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(:xxi) and 4 of the
Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (the "CARO") issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, to be included in
the Auditor's report, according to the information and explanations given to
us, and based on the reports issued by the respective auditors of the
Associate Company incorporated in India as referred in Para "Qualified
Opinion", we report that, the respective auditor is of the opinion that CARO
reporting is not applicable to such Associate Company. 

2. As required by the Companies (Amended) Act, 2017, in our opinion, according to
information, explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company and its
Associate to its Directors is within the limits laid prescribed under Section 197 of the
Act and the rules thereunder. 

For MURALI & VENKAT 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm's Registrati

.: 
NU::.l 0021625

��� 
Partner
Membership Number: 028348
UDIN: 23028348BGPZDJ3765 

Place: Bangalore.
Date: 20th May, 2023



ANNEXURE 'A' - The Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Oause (i) of Sub­
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") to the Independent 

Auditor's report of even date on the Consolidated Financial Statements of M/S. JANA 

HOLDINGS LIMITED 

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial 
Statements of Jana Holdings Limited ("the Company") and its Associate Company as of 31st 
March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the 
Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Financial Controls 

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining Internal 
Financial Controls based on the internal controls with reference to Consolidated Financial 
Statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting (the Guidance Note) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly 
and efficient conduct of its business, inducting adherence to Company's policies, the 
safeguarcting of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with 
reference to Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by !CAI and 
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Guidance 
Note to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and 
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls 
with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements were established and maintained and if 

such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of 
the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements and their 
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to 
Consolidated Financial Statements includes obtaining an understancting of internal financial 
controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of 
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error. 



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to 
Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial 
Statements 

A Company's internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements 
is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accoW1ting principles. A Company's internal financial 
controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements includes those policies and 
procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately 
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; provide 
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and Provide 
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, 
use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the 
Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated 
Financial Statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to 
Consolidated Financial Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur 
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls 
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial 

controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate. 



Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial 
control with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements and such internal financial 
controls were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal controls with 
reference to Consolidated Financial Statements criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of Internal Financial Controls stated in the Guidance 
Note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

For MURALI & VENKA T 

CHARTERED ACCOUNfAN1S 

F
i
rm's Registration Nwnber: 0021625 
., 

Partner 

Membership Number: 028348

UDIN: 23028348BGPZDJ3765 

Place: Bangalore. 

Date: 20th May, 2023 

-



JAN.A HOLDINGS LIMJTED 
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023 

(Rs. In thousands) 
.. As at As at 

Particulars Note 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22 
ASSETS 

- (1) Flnancial Assets 
(aJ Cash and cash equivalent 1 (I) ,. 164.57 17,610.67 
(b) Bank balance other than (a) above l(lf) 
(C) Derivative Financial Instruments 
(di Receivables 
(el Loans 2 9,119.80 
(f) Investments 3 23,23,261.31 13, 99,552.47 
(g) Other financial assets 4 1,969.00 1,941.00 

(2) Non- Flnanclal Assets 
(a) Inventories 
(b) Current tall assets (Net) 5 878.32 41.48 
(C) Deferred tall assets (Net) 
(d) Investment Property 
(e) Biological assets other than bearer plants 
(f) Property, plant and equipment 6 58.95 108.06 
(g) Other intangible assets 7 0.00 3.18 
(h) Other non financial assets 8 6.71 

Total Assets 23,27,332.16 14,28,383.57 
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 
LIABILITIES 

(1) Flnanclal Llabflftles 
(al Derivative financlal Instruments 
(b) Payables 

(I) Trade Payables 
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 
(ff) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 

enterprises and small enterprises 9 

(c) Debt Securities 10 2,25,45,346.92 1,89,95,919.98 
(d) Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 
(e) Deposits 
(f) Other financial liabilities 11 335.00 329.50 

(2) Non-Financial Llabllltles 
(a) Current tax liabilities (Net) 
(b) Provisions 12 1,393.83 1,003.33 
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 
(d) Other non-financial liabilities 13 3,950.22 3,441.27 

(3) EQUITY 
(a) Equity share capital 14 31,371.36 23,809.44 
(b) Other equity 15 (2,02,55,065.17) (1,75,96, 119.96) 

Total Liabilities and Equity 23,27,332.16 1-4,28,383.57 

Summary of signiflcant accounting policies 
See accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements 1·38 
The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the standalone financial statements 
As per our report of even date 

For MURALI & VENKAT For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Jana Hotdi"!S limited 
Chartered Accountants 

Registration No.: 002162S 

Partner 
Membership No: 028348 
Place: Bangalore 
Date: 20 May 2023 

([�0,6PCCOU8l8 

Rajamani� 

Managing Director and CEO 
DIN:08080999 
Place: Bangalore 
Date: 20 May 2023 

Gopa krlshnan S 
Chi Flnanc1al officer 
ICAI Membership No: 021783 
Place: Bangalore 
Date: 20 May 2023 

�Jtiv Ransana S V 
Director 
DIN:00323799 

Vidya Sridhar,an 
Company Secretary 
ICSI Membership No: A44354 
Place: Bangalore 
Date: 20 May 2023 
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JANA HOLDINGS LIMJTEO 
Statement of Consolidated Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2023 

Particulars 

Revenue from Operations 
(i) Interest Income 
(ii) Dividend income 
(iii) Rental Income 
(iv) Others 
(I) Total Revenue from Operations

(II) Other Income 
(Ill) Total Income (1+11) 

Exoenses 
(I) 

(ti) 

Finance costs 
Fees and commission expense 

(iii) Net loss on fair value changes 
(iv) Net loss on derecognition of financ1al instruments under amortised 

cost category 
(v) Impairment on financial instruments 
(vi) Employee benefits expenses 
(vii) Depreciation and amortization 
(viii) Others expenses 
(IV) Total Expenses (IV)
(VJ Loss before exceptional items, tax and share of loss of Associate (Ill • 

IV) 
(VI) Exceptional items
(VII) Loss before tax and share of loss of Associate (V-VI)
(VIiii) Share of Profft/(loss) of the associate accounted for using equity

method 
(IX) Tax expense:

( 1) Current tax
(2) Deferred tax

(X) Loss for the year (Vll•Vlll•IX) 

(XI) Other Comprehensive Income
(A) (I) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to 
profit or loss
Other Comprehensive Income 

(XII) Total Comprehensive Loss for the period (IX+X)

(XIII) Earnlnss per equity share
Bask (Rs.) 

DIiuted (Rs.) 

Summary of slgnlflc.int accounting policies 
See accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements 
The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the standalone 
financial statements 

As per our report of even date 
For MURALI Ii VENKAT

Partner 
Membership No: 028348 
Place: Bangalore 
Date: 20 May 2023 

Note 

16 

17 

18 
19 
20 
21 

21 

For the year ended 
31-March-2023

340.16 

8,500.00 
8,840.16 

8,8'40. 16 

32.83,517.82 

12,987.68 
52.48 

37,373.48 
33,33,931.'46 

(33,25,091.30) 

(33,25,091.30) 

(70,319.96) 

(33,95,411.26) 

(33,95,411 .26) 

1 • 38 

(1,082.33) 
(1,082.33) 

(Rs. In thousands) 
For the year ended 

31-March-2022

450.89 

'450.89 

450.89 

27,23,811.09 

(), 72,886.21) 
13,289.76 

161.33 
69,397.74 

24,33,773.69 

(24,33,322.80) 

(24,33,322.80) 

(9,01,618.64) 

(33,3'4,9'41.45) 

(33,34,941.45) 

(1,400.68) 
(1,400.68) 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Jana Holdings Limited 

Q"""'.."'"'-""''' 
RaJ•=el

� 

Managing Director and CEO 
DIN:08080999 
Place: Bangalore 
Date: 20 May 2023 

!..r.:.::, 
Chief Financial officer 
ICAI Membership No: 021783 
Place: Bangalore 
Date: 20 May 2023 

�
Director 
OIN:00323799 
Place: Bangalore 

Vidya Sridharan 
Company Secretary 
ICSI Membership No: A44354 O lN G' 
Place: Bangalore 

O 
\,; '5' 

Date: 20 May 2023 
� 
<!. 

� 
< *



JANA HOLDINGS LIMITED 
Statement of Consolidated Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2023 

l: (Amount in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Cash flow from operating activities
Loss after tax 
Adjustments for: 

Depreciation and amortization expenses 
Share of loss of the associate accounted for using equity method 
Reversal on Impairment of financial instruments
Provisions for employee benefits 
Finance cost (Interest on debt securities) 

Operating loss before working capital changes and adjustments
Changes In working capital 
(Decrease) / Increase in payables 
Decrease/ (increase) In other financial assets 
(Decrease) / Increase in other financial liabilities 
(Decrease) / Increase in other non-financial liabilities 
Decrease/ (increase) in other non financial assets 
Cash from (used in) operations
Cash used In operations 
Income tax paid / Current tax assets (net) 
Net cash tlows used In operating activities (A)
Cash flow from Investing activities 
Payment for purchase of property, plant and equipment 
Investment in associate 

Net cash flow used In investing activities (6) 

Cash flow from Financing activities 
Proceeds from issue of shares 
Premium on issue of shares 
Proceeds from debt securities Issued 
Repayment of dues for debt securities 
Net cash flow from financing activities (C) 

Net Increase tn cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 
cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise (Refer note 1) 
Balances with banks 

On current accounts 
On deposits with Banks 

Total cash and bank balances at end of the year 
See accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date

Year ended 

31·Mar-23

(33,95,411.26) 

52.48 
70,319.96 

390.51 
32,83,517.82 

(41,130.49)

9,091.80 
5.50 

508.95
6.71

9,612.96
9,612.96 
(836.84) 

(32,354.35) 

(9,99,999.64) 

(9, 99,999.64)

7,561.91
7,42,436.87
2,65,909.12

10, 15,907.89

(16,446.10)
17,610.67

1,164.57 

1,164.57 

1,164.57 

1 · 38

Year ended
31•Mar•22

(33,34,941.45) 

161.33 
9,01,618.64 

(3, 72,886.21)
484.57

27,23,811.09

(81,752.04)

(32.40) 
(9,450.11) 

(80.50) 
3,066.29 

162.34 
(6,334.38) 
(6,334.38) 

94.82 
(87,991.58)

(65.56) 
(6,59,999.06) 

(6,60,064.62)

41,45,000.00 
(33,88, 925.48)
7,56,074.52

8,018.32 
9,592.35

17,610.67

7,516.70 
10,093.97 

17,610.67

For MURALI & VENKAT 
Chartered Accountants 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Jana Holdings Limited 
CIN:U7 900KA2016PLC086838 

JCAI Firm Registration No.: 002162S 

��-
Partner 
Membership No: 028348 
Place: Bangalore 
Date: 20 May 2023 

Rajamani Muth chamy 
Managing Director and CEO 
DIN:08080999 
Place: Bangalore 
Date: 20 May 2023 

:: .. '{LM:: 

Chie'f Financial officer 
ICAI Membership No: 021783 
Place: Bangalore 
Date: 20 May 2023 

�Ranganath S V 
Director 
DIN:00323799 
Place: Bangalore 

7 
Vldya Sridharan

Company Secretary 
ICSI Membership No: A443 DIN Q 
Place: Bangalore □:,..,; u' 
Date: 20 May 2023 � 
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JANA HOLDINGS LIMITED 
Consolidated Statement of Chan� In Equity for th" year ended 31 March 2023 
(Amount In INR thousands, uni.,., otherwise stated! 

A) Equity Share Capital 
(IJ Current Reportln• Period. FY 2022·2023 

Changes fn Restated balance at Changes in 
Balance at the beginning Equity Share the beginnin9 of equity share 
of the current reporting period Capital due lo lhe current capital during 
01-Apr-2022 prior periOd reporting period the curreint 

error, 01-Apr-2022 year 

23,809.4<4 23,809.44 7,561.92 

21 Preyious Reportjng Period• FY 2021-2021 

Changes In Restated balance al Changes In 
Balance at the beginning Equity Share the beginning of equity share 
of the previous reporting period Capital due to the previous capital during 
01-Apr-2021 prior period reporting period the previous 

errors Ol·AP,·2021 yea_r 

23,809.44 23,809.44 

Bl Other Equity 
(1) Current Reporting Period• FY 2022-2023 

Balance al lhe 
end of the 
current reporting 
period 
3 I ·March•2023 

31,371.36 

Batmce at the 
end of the 
previous 
reporting period 
31·March-2022 

23,809.« 

Reserves and Surplus 

Particulars 

Balance al the beginning of the 
cum,nt reporting period 01 ·Apr· 
2022 

Changes fn accounting policy or prior 
period errors 

Restated balance at the begfnnln11 ol 
the current reporting pertOd 01 •Apr• 
2022 

Tollll Comprehensive Income/ (loss) 
for the current year 
Dividends 
Transfer to retained earnings 
Premium on Issue or shares 

� � other chanBe (to be spedfie-d) 

.... ,-, 
��EN�l'fe at the end of I/le current 

F°flll No, - �tns pertod 11 ·March-2023 
002162S r) 

��'/

Share 
applfcatfon 
money 
pending 
allotment 

Equity component 
of compound 
ffnancial 
instruments 

�

Securities Capital Reserve Premium 

1,37.◄7,lTT.92 

1,37,◄7,1TT.92 

7,◄2,◄36.87 

1,44,89,61◄.78 

Stawtory 
R�rve 

30,339.16 

30,l39.16 

30,)39.16 

Retained 
Earnings 

(l, 11,◄1, 197.◄1) 

(3,11,◄1,197.◄1) 

(ll,95,◄11.26) 

(l,◄S,36,608.66) 

Debt 
lnsuvmenu 
through 
Other 
Comprehensl 
ve Income 

Exchange 
�,:::,.,.,

ts 
Effective differences on Other Items of 
portion Rcvaluat translating the 01.her through of Cash ion nnandal Comprehensive OthCt flow Surplus statements of Income l,pedfy Compn,hens Hedges a foreign nawre) ive Income �tion 

(2,)2,◄39.61) 

(2,32,◄39.61) 

(S,970.8◄) 

(2,38,◄10.◄51 

-..y 
received 
against 
share 
warrants 

.. 
II 

Tot.al 

(1,75,96, 119.96) 

(1,75,96, 119.96) 

{3◄,01,382.10) 

7,◄2,◄36.87 



JANA HOLDINGS LIMITED 

Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity for the year ended 31 March 2023 

(Amount in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated) 

2) Previous Reporting Period - FY l021-2022 

Share 
application 

Equity compone<1t 

Particulars money 
of compound 
nnandal 

pending 
Instruments 

allotment 

Balance at the beginning of the 
prevfous reporting period 01-Apr-
2021 

Changes in accounting policy or prior 
period errors 

Restated balance at the beginning of 
the previous reporting period 01-Apr· . 

2021 

Total Comprehensive Income I (Loss) 
for the previous year 

Dividends 

Transfer to retained earnings 

Any other change Ito be specified! 

Balance at the end or the previous 
reporting period 31-March·ZOU 

The accomp<1nying notes are an Integral part of these financial st.atements 

As per our report or even date 

For MURALI & VENKAT 

Chartered Accountants " ;�,_.,oo�-

Partner 

Membership No: 0283◄8 

Place: Ba.ngalore 

Date: 20 May 2023 

Reserves and Surplus 

Debt 
fnstruments 

Securities Retained through Capital Reserve 
Starutory 

Premium Reserve Earnings Other 
Cornprehensi 
ve Income 

1,37,47, 1n. n J0,339.16 (2, 78,06, 255. 96) 

1,37.47, lTT.92 30,339.16 (2, 78,06,255. 96) 

(33,34,9◄1.◄5) 

l,37,47,1TT.92 30,339.16 (3, 11,41, 197.◄1) 

1 · 38 

For and on behalf or the Board of Directors of Jana Holding, Limited 

CIN: 7◄900KA2016PLC086838 
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157,109.78) (33,92,05l.2Ji 

. (2,32,◄39.61) (1,75,96, 119,96) 



JANA HOLDINGS LIMITED 

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March :2023 

Company Overview 

1 . 1 Reporting Entity 

The Company was incorporated on 10 March 2016 to carry on the business of an Investment Company and to invest, buy, sell, transfer, 

deal in and dispose of any shares, stocks, debentures, whether perpetual or redeemable debenture, debentures, stocks, securities of any 

Government, Local Authority, Bonds and Certificates. The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Jana Capital Limited. The Company 

has received certificate of registration for Non-Banking Financial Company ('NBFC') Non Operating Financial Holding Company ('NOFHC) 

from Reserve Bank of India, on 27 January 2017. As per the guidelines for licensing of new banks in the private sector issued by Reserve 

Bank of India, the Company, a Non-Operating Financial Holding Company, holds the investment in Jana Small Finance Bank (formerly 

known as 'Janalakshmi Financial Services Limited'). 

The Board in its meeting held on October 21, 2019, and November 12, 2019, approved Fast-track method for merging Jana Holdings 

Limited (JHL), being the wholly owned Non-Operating Financial Holding Company (NOFHC), with Its Holding as well as Core Investment 

Company, Jana Capital Limited after receiving the in-principle approval from the RBI on 10th August 2020. As per the existing guidelines, 

the requirement of having a NOFHC has been dispensed with by the RBI for setting up Small Finance Banks and Universal Banks. 

Further, such a merger of the wholly owned subsidiary with the Holding Company will simplify the compliances to be reported to various 

Regulatory Authorities, besides resulting in lower operating costs. Subsequent to the receipt of the in-principle approval from the RBI, the 

Board of Directors of the transferor and the Transferee Companies met on 24th August 2020, approved the Scheme of Amalgamation of 

Jana Holdings Limited (Wholly Owned subsidiary) with Jana Capital Limited (Holding Company). 

The transferee Company submitted necessary application to the Regional Director, South-East Region, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, 

Hyderabad, on 6th November 2020 for obtaining approval of Amalgamation under Section 233 of the Companies Act, 2013. Regional 

Director, Ministry of Company Affairs, Hyderabad vide letter dated 26th March 2021 rejected the application filed on 6th November 2020 

for the merger of JHL with JCL, since JHL had obtained consent from the creditors to the extent of 82. 78% In value as against the 

minimum threshold of consent from 90% of the creditors in value as required under Section 233 of the Companies Act, 2013 and, as such, 

the provisions of Section 233(1 )(d) could not be fully complied with. The Board of Directors considered the aforesaid rejection order and 

resolved to file the fresh merger application subject to the approval of the Scheme by the Board of Directors, Shareholders, Creditors, 

and such other authorities as may be required. In the meanwhile, the Board of directors of both Jana Holdings Limited and Jana Capital 

Limited on November 14, 2022 have once again approved the scheme of amalgamation and resolved to apply afresh for the merger of the 

company with Jana Capital Limited, the Holding Company. In line with the decision of the Board of Directors, the company ha.s obtained 

affidavits in the prescribed Formats from some of the creditors and shareholders for the merger. It is noted here that for want of the 

consent of one creditor constituting about 17.22% of the total creditors In value, due to which the earlier application was rejected, has 

during the current period provided their consent for the merger as the company has met their demand for providing the same. 

The Company is working with the other creditors and shareholders for their consents. Upon the receipt of the same, the Company will file 

the application with NCL T for merger and for seeking dispensation with the meeting of creditors and shareholders and follow the 

subsequent processes involved in the Merger. 

1. 2 Statement of compliance 

These financial statements are Consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS"), the 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") (as amended). The Ind AS are prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 

of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendments Rules, 2016. 

Jana Capital Limited ('the Parent Company' or 'the Holding Company') is a company incorporated in India, which holds 100% of Jana 

Holdings Limited ('the Company'), The Company holds 42.88% of Equity shares of Jana Small Finance Bank ('Associate'). 

1. 3 Basis of preparation 

These Consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under 

Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act") read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies 

(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016. (As Amended from time to time) 

The financial statements up to year ended 31 March 2018 were prepared in accordance with the accounting standards notified under the 

section 133 of the Act, read with with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Ace.aunts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP). 

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 were the first set of financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS. 

The Company is regulated by the Reserve Bank of India ('RBI'). RBI periodically issues/amends directions, regulations and/or guidance 

(collectively "Regulatory Framework") covering various aspects of the operation of the Company, including those relating to accounting 

for certain types of transactions. The Regulatory Framework contains specific instructions that need to be followed by the Company in 

preparing its financial statements. The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 have been prepared by the Company in 

accordance with Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS") notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India under the 

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies. (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016, as 

amended from time to time, in this regard. 

1.4 Functional and Presentation currency 

1.5 

These Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company's functional currency. All 

amounts are round.ed off to the nearest thousands, unless otherwise indicated. 

Basis of measurement 

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis. 



JANA HOLDINGS LIMITED 

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 

1.6 Significant areas of estimation, critical judgments and assumptions in applying accounting policies 

The preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with Ind AS requires management to make judgements, estimates 

and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, as well 

as the disclosure of contingent liabilities. The Company's management believes that the estimates used in preparation of the Financial 

Statements are prudent and rea.sonable. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those 

estfmates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of the changes in circumstances surrounding the 

estimates. Any changes in the accounting estimates are reflected in the perfod in which such change in circumstances are made, and if 

material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the Financial Statements. 

The key estimates and assumptions used in preparation of Financial Statements are; 

i. Fair value of Financial Instruments

The fair value of Financial Instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 

transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under curre.nt market conditions (i.e., an exit price) 

regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated usfng another valuation technique. When the fair values of financial

assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety 

of valuation techniques that include the use of valuation models. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where 

possible, but where this is not feasible, estimation is required in establishing fair values. Judgements and estimates include 

considerations of liquidity and model Inputs related to items. 

ii. Determination of the estimated useful lives of tangible assets and the assessment as to which components of the cost may be

capitalized.

Useful lives of tangible assets are based on the life prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. Use of assumptions is also made

by the Company for assessing whether an asset may be capitalized and which components of the cost of the asset may be capitalized.

2 Significant accounting policies

The Company has applied the following Accounting Policies to all periods presented in these Financial Statements. 

i. Revenue recognition

Interest on fixed deposits is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the applicable rate. 

Dividend Is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established.

Ii. Finance Cost 

Interest expense on financial liabilities is recognized on an accrual basis using effective interest rate (EIR) method. 

The EIR is the rate that discounts the estimated future cash flows through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter 

period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial liability adjusted for upfront expenses. The interest expense is 

recognized on EIR method on a time proportion basis applied on the carrying amount for financial liability.

Arranger fees, stamp duty charges and other fees that are integral to the effective interest rate on a liability are included in the effective

interest rate.

Other fees and expenses such are recognized as and when they are incurred.

iii. Financial assets and liabilities

a. Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Except for items at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), all financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus or minus

transaction costs that are directly attributable and incremental to the origination/acquisition of the financial asset.

Financial assets at amortised cost

A financial asset Is measured at amortized cost if It meets both of the following conditions and Is not designated as at FVTPL: 

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and 

• the contractual tenms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest 

outstanding on the principal amount outstanding (SPPI).

After Initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Amortized cost is 

calculated by considering any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR and reported as 

part of interest income in the Statement of Profit or Loss. The losses if any, arising from impainment are recognized in the Statement of 

Profit or Loss. 

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 

A financial asset is measured at FVOCI, only if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL: 

· the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial 

assets; and 

• the contractual terms of the finandal asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are SPPI.

The loss allowance is recognized in other comprehensive income and does not reduce the carrying value of the financial asset. When the

financial asset is derecognized the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity

to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment. 
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Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL) 

Any financial instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVOCI, is classified to be 

measured at FVTPL. 

In addition, the Company may also elect to classify a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVOCI criteria, as at 

FVTPL. However, such election is done only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as 

'accounting mismatch'). 

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in profit or loss. 

Classification and subsequent measurement 

The Company classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at either amortized cost or fair value based on the business model 

for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. 

b. Financial Liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Except for items at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), all financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value plus or minus

transaction costs that are directly attributable and incremental to the issue of the financial liabilities.

Subsequent measurement

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost except for financial liabilities at FVTPL. Such liabilities including

derivatives that are liabilities are subsequently measured at fair value.

c. De-recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) Is primarily derecognized

when

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

- The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows

in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through' arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred

substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and

rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

On de-recognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the 

portion of the asset derecognized) and the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) shall 

be recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss. 

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expired. 

d. Modifications of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are modified, the Company evaluates whether the cash flows of the modified asset are substantially

different. If the cash flows are substantially different, then the contractual rights to cash flows from the original financial asset are

deemed to have expired. In this case, the original financial asset is derecognized and a new financial asset is recognized at fair value

adjusted for any eligible transaction costs.

If the cash flows of the modified asset carried at amortized cost are not substantially different, then the modification does not result in

derecognition of the financial asset. In this case, the Company recalculates the gross carrying amount of the financial asset and 

recognizes the amount arising from adjusting the gross carrying amount as a modification gain or loss in Statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially

different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognized at fair value. The difference between the

carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognized in statement of 

profit or loss.

e. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the statement of financial position when the 

Company has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends to settle on net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously.



JANA HOLDINGS LIMITED 

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 

f. Fair value measurement

'Fair value' is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 

participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the Company has access

at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk.

When one is available, the Company measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active market for that 

instrument. A market is regarded as 'active' if transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to 

provide pricing information on an ongoing basis. 

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Company uses valuation techniques that maximise the use of relevant observable 

inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique incorporates all of the factors that market 

participants would take into account in pricing a transaction. 

tv. Employee Benefits

The employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid, if the 

Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the 

obligation can be estimated reliably. The Short term and long term employee Benefits are disclosed based on the period pending for due. 

v. Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss if any.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets Includes the cost

of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for their Intended use,

the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located, and borrowing costs on qualifying

assets.

When significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items

(major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with

the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment, and are recognized net within the statement of profit or loss.

Subsequent costs 

The cost of replacing a part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the carrying amount of the item if it is probable 

that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Company, and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying 

amount of the replaced part is derecognized. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognized in 

profit or loss as incurred. 

Depreciation 

Depreciation is calculated on the cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual values (at 0.01% except for 

leasehold improvements which are fully depreciated) using the Straight-Line Method (SLM) over their estimated useful lives, and is 

recognized in Statement of profit or loss. 

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows: 

Particulars Useful Life 

Furniture and Fixtures 10 Years 

Computers and Printers 3 Years 

The depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate. 

Depreciation on additions / disposals is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from / up to the date on which asset is ready for use /disposed 

of. 

vi. Other intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are 

carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment tosses, if any. Intangible assets, comprising of software are 

amortized on the basis of written down value method over the estimated useful life of the asset. 

Particulars Useful Life 

Computer Software 3 Years 

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate. 

















































JANA HOLDINGS LIMITED 
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 
(Amount in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated) 

36 Going Concern Basis of Accounting 
The Company has incurred a net loss of INR 3,395,411.26 thousands for the year ended March 31, 2023 (net loss of INR 3,334,941.45 thousands for the year ended March 31, 2022), and has 
accumulated losses amounting to INR 34,536,608.66 thousands, as on March 31, 2023 which has substantially eroded the net worth of the company. Further, breaches in the regulatory 
requirements such as consolidated capital adequacy ratio, net owned fund and leverage ratio continue to exist. (Refer note 33, 34, and 35 for detailed explanations regarding regulatory 
breaches). Above events Indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on Company's ability to continue as a going concern. However, the Company has taken steps 
to raise further debt and equity that is reqUired to maintain sufficient liquidity to meet its obligations and continue its business for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the financial 
statements have been prepared under the going concern assumption. 

3 7 Listing requirement for equity shares of Associate Company 
As per Small Finance Bank Licensing Guidelines by the RBI, equity shares of the Bank are required to be listed on a stock exchange in India within three years from the date of commencement 
of banking business i.e., March 27, 2021. The Bank has filed draft red herring prospectus (DRHP) with Securities Exchange Board of India (SEBI) on March 31, 2021. and received SEBl's approval 
to raise funds through IPO on July 12, 2021. 

38 Prior yl'ar comparatives 
Previous year figures have been re•grouped / reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current year's classification/ disclosure. 

As per our report of even date 
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